Tab 1:

Tah 2:

Tab 3:

Tab 4:
Tab 5:
Tab 6:

Tab 7:

-~ RHODE ISLAND COMMERCE CORPORATION
AGENDA
February 25, 2019
Call to order and opening remarks.
To consider the approval of meeting minutes for the meeting held January 28, 2019.

To consider Westminster Partners LLC for an award under the Tax Increment
Financing program.*

To consider the issuance of bonds in relation to the Historic Structures Tax Credit
Financing program.*

To receive an update with regard to the Innovation Voucher program.*
To consider the engagement of vendors in relation to real estate consultant services.
To consider contract extensions in relation to vendors for marketing/tourism.

To consider the utilization of the Corporation’s incentive programs for the
investment of public funds.*

*Board members may convene in Executive Session pursuant to R.I. Gen. Laws § 42-46-5(a)(7)
to discuss this Agenda itern.




TAB 1




VOTE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE RHODE ISLAND COMMERCE CORPORATION

February 25, 2019

APPROVED

VOTED: To approve meeting minutes for the meeting held January 28, 2019 as presented to
the Board.




RHODE ISLAND COMMERCE CORPORATION

MEETING OF DIRECTORS
PUBLIC SESSION
January 28, 2019

The Board of Directors of the Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation”)
met on January 28, 2019, in Public Session, beginning at 5:00 p.m. at the offices of the
Corporation, located at 315 Iron Horse Way, Suite 101, Providence, Rhode Island 02908, pursuant
to the public notice of meeting, a copy of which s attached hereto as Exhibit A, as required by
applicable Rhode Island law.

The following Directors were present and participated throughout the meeting as indicated:
Governor Gina M. Raimondo, Dr. Nancy Carriuolo, Bernard Buonanno, 111, Mary Jo Kaplan,
Ronald O’Hanley, Michael McNally, George Nee, Donna Sams, Vanessa Toledo-Vickers, and
Kar] Wadensten.

Directors absent were: Tim Hebert and Jason Kelly.

Also present were: Secretary of Commerce Stefan Pryor; Jesse Saglio, President & COO;
and Thomas E. Carlotto, Esq.

1. CALL TO ORDER AND OPENING REMARKS.

Governor Raimondo called the meeting to order at 5:11, indicating that a quorum was
present.

2. TO CONSIDER THE MEETING MINUTES FOR THE MEETING HELD ON
DECEMBER 17, 2018. '

Upon motion duly made by Dr. Carrivolo and seconded by Ms. Toledo-Vickers, the
following vote was adopted:

YOTED: To approve meeting minutes for the meeting held December 17, 2018 as
presented to the Board.

Voting in favor of the foregoing were: Dr. Nancy Carrivolo, Bernard Buonanno, [11, Mary
Jo Kaplan, Ronald O’Hanley, Michael McNally, George Nee, Donna Sams, Vanessa Toledo-
Vickers, and Karl Wadensten.

Voting against the foregoing were: none.



3. TO CONSIDER CUSTOM AND MILLER BOX COMPANY FOR AN AWARD
UNDER THE QUALIFIED JOBS INCENTIVE TAX CREDIT PROGRAM.

Jeff Miller, Executive Vice President of Investments, explained that before the Board was
Custom and Miller Box Company’s application (“CMBC”) for incentives under the Qualified Jobs
Tax Credit program. He noted that CMBC is a Pawtucket-based company that is seeking to
consolidate its operations into a 300,000 square foot building in Pawtucket. Mr. Miller stated that
CMBC has committed to creating forty-two new full-time jobs within the first three years of a ten-
year commitment period. The forty-two new jobs, Mr. Miller explained, are anticipated to have a
median salary of $30,000, which will result in about $660,000 in tax credits over the ten-year
commitment period.

Mr. Wadensten inquired as to CMBC’s current footprint in Pawtucket, and David Strauss,
CMBC’s owner, responded that the company presently occupies a one floor mill building that is
150,000 square feet. Mr. Strauss noted that CMBC’s newly proposed location is double the square
footage and not as functionally obsolete as its’s current location. Mr. Buonanno inquired if this
new facility would give CMBC a chance to increase its customer base, and Mr. Strauss responded
in the affirmative. In response to a question by Mr. Wadensten, Mr. Sirauss stated that the
company has a hard time retaining employees, and that it would consider employing a variety of
people, including those with prior criminal convictions. Mr, Nee opined that awarding incentives
to CMBC is a great opportunity to support Pawtucket.

Upon motion duly made by Mr. Nee and seconded by Mr. O’Hanley, the following vote
was adopted:

VOTED: To approve Custom and Miller Box Company for an award under the
Qualified Jobs Incentive Tax Credit program pursuant to the resolution
submitted to the Board.

Voting in favor of the foregoing were: Dr. Nancy Carriuolo, Bernard Buonanno, III, Mary
Jo Kaplan, Ronald O’Hanley, Michael McNally, George Nee, Donna Sams, Vanessa Toledo-
Vickers, and Karl Wadensten,

Voting against the foregoing were: none.

A copy of the resolution is attached hereto as Exhibit B.

4. TO _CONSIDER BAC CVP ALOFT LLC FOR AN AWARD UNDER TIHE

REBUILD RHODE ISLAND TAX CREDIT PROGRAM AND THE TAX
INCREMENT FINANCING PROGRAM.

Secretary Pryvor indicated that Dick Galvin, a representative of CV Properties, LLC, was
present, and that a major priority for the Governor, the Board and the 195 Commission is the
revitalization of the 1-195 innovation and design district. Secretary Pryor explained that before the
Board for approval was the application of BAC CVP Aloft, LLC (“BAC”) for incentives under the
Rebuild Rhode Island Tax Credit program and the Tax Increment Financing (TIE) Program for the




construction of an Aloft Hotel in the innovation and design district. He noted that the hotel is
designed to be seven stories, have 169 rooms, contain a 6,300 square-foot restaurant, and offer a
rooftop bar. Secretary Pryor stated that the hotel project is estimated to create one hundred
eighteen ongoing jobs and three hundred forty-seven construction jobs; result in a $9,300,000
annual increase in the State’s gross domestic product; and result in a $14,000,000 net contribution
to the State over the twelve years after construction. Secretary Pryor indicated that the
Corporation’s staff was recommending that the Board approve up to $6,750,000 in TIF, and a
$100,000 tax credit incentive under the Rebuild Rhode Island tax credit program together with a
sales tax rebate in regard to the project. In addition, Secretary Pryor noted, the hotel will receive
a $750,000 from the 195 Redevelopment Project Fund. As a result, Secretary Pryor stated,
incentives will cumulatively total $7,600,000.

In response to questions by Mr. Wadensten, Mr. Galvin stated that construction will start
later this summer, and that the Board’s approval of incentives will permit BAC and its lenders to
finalize the project’s financing. Mr. Galvin further indicated that the anticipated construction
timeline for the hotel is sixteen months, and the hotel has a target opening date in the 1¥ quarter of
2021. In response to a question by Mr. Buonanno, Mr. Galvin stated that the room rates for the
hotel will follow the normal Providence rates of $172 to $174 per night. Mr. Buonanno stated that
this parcel was anticipated to be a hotel project, and the incentives, in proportion to the overall
costs of construction, are consistent with other hotel projects that were awarded incentives.

Upon motion duly made by Mr. O’Hanley and seconded by Dr. Carriuolo, the following
vote was adopted:

YOTED: To approve BAC CVP Aloft LLC for incentives under the Tax Increment
Financing Act and the Rebuild Rhode I[sland Tax Credit Act pursuant to the
resolutions presented to the Board.

Voting in favor of the foregoing were: Dr. Nancy Carriuolo, Bernard Buonanno, 111, Mary
Jo Kaplan, Ronald O’Hanley, Michael McNally, George Nee, Donna Sams, Vanessa Toledo-
Vickers, and Karl Wadensten.

Voting against the foregoing were: none.

A copy of the resolution is attached hereto as Exhibit C.

5. TO CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL INNOVATION YOUCHERS,

Christine Smith, Managing Director of Innovation, stated that five innovation vouchers
were before the Board for consideration, which cumulatively total $242,582. Ms. Smith indicated
that one voucher will be used for internal research and development, and the other four are
vouchers to applicants that are partnered with different departments within the University of Rhode
Island. She also noted that applicants for vouchers come from a wide variety of sectors, such as
defense, the blue economy, advanced textiles, and advanced manufacturing. Ms. Smith explained
that if the Board approves the vouchers before it, the Innovation Voucher program will have
$486,000 remaining for the remaining five months of this year, which will likely fund about nine



to ten more vouchers. Mr. Wadensten described his role at the University. of Rhode Island, and
expressed his hope to connect college seniors with applicants for the Corporation’s programs in a
way to increase employment in the State. The Governor commented that the Innovation Voucher
program has been in existence for a few years and has made $3,500,000 in awards. Mr. McNally
commented that vouchers awarded to those partnered with URI are good because it is a “double
win.” Mr. Wadensten stated that the Corporation should try to also get other universities and
colleges involved in the program.

Upon motion duly made by Ms. Toledo-Vickers and seconded by Mr. Wadensten, the
following vote was adopted:

VOTED: To approve the Innovation Vouchers pursuant to the resolution submitted
to the Board.

Voting in favor of the foregoing were: Dr. Nancy Carriuolo, Bernard Buonanno, 111, Mary
Jo Kaplan, Ronald O’Hanley, Michael McNally, George Nee, Donna Sams, Vanessa Toledo-
Vickers, and Karl Wadensten.

Voting against the foregoing were: none.

A copy of the resolution is attached hereto as Exhibit D.

6. TO CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL THE BUDGET OF THE CORPORATION.

Mr. Saglio provided an overview of the Corporation’s budget, which totals $54.1 million -
and includes $9.8 million of operating funds and $44.3 million of funds for the Corporation’s
programs. He indicated that the operating funds are used to pay expenses such as salaries,
overhead, and consultants, and the program funds are the funds invested info the State’s economy.
Mr. Saglio explained that the funding sources of the budget include annual state appropriations,
hotel taxes, federal grants, and other modest income generated through the Corporation’s
operations. Mr. Saglio observed that the budget before the Board is similar fo last year’s budget.
Mr. Saglio discussed other aspects of the budget in comparison to last year.

Mr. McNally expresses his belief that the budget is encouraging because personnel and
overhead costs have decreased despite the amount of incentives issued increasing, which means
that its costing less to make more incentives. In response to a question, Lisa Lasky, the
Corporation’s Chief Financial Officer, explained the reason for restricted funds. Mr. Saglio and
Mr. Wadensten discussed the tourism and marketing budget and how it is funded and tax increment
financing structures. Mr. Buonanno expressed his approval of the budget. Mr. O’Hanley
suggested making the budget easier to comprehend for the public.

Upon motion duly made by Mr. O’Hanley and seconded by Mr. McNally the following
vote was adopted:

YOTED: To approve the Corporation’s annual budget as presented to the Board.



Voting in favor of the foregoing were: Dr. Nancy Carriuolo, Bernard Buonanno, 111, Mary
Jo Kaplan, Ronald O’Hanley, Michael McNally, George Nee, Donna Sams, Vanessa Toledo-
Vickers, and Karl Wadensten.

Voting against the foregoing were: none.
There being no further business in Public Session, the meeting was adjourned by

unanimous consent at 5:45 p.m. upon motion made by Dr. Carriuolo and seconded by Mr.
Wadensten.

Thomas E. Carlotto, Secretary




EXHIBIT A

Meeting Minutes January 28. 2019




RHODE ISLAND COMMERCE CORPORATION
PUBLIC NOTICE OF MEETING

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Rhode Island Commerce Corporation will be
held at the offices of the Rhode Island Commerce Corporation, 315 Iron Horse Way, Suite
101, Providence, Rhode Island, on January 28, 2019 beginning at 5:00 p.m., for the following
purposes:

PUBLIC SESSION

1. Call to order and opening remarks.
2. To consider for approval meeting minutes.

3. To consider Custom and Miller Box Company for an award under the Qualified Jobs
Incentive Tax Credit program (See Exhibit 1, which follows, for additional details).*

4. To consider BAC CVP Aloft LLC for an award under the Tax Increment Financing
program and the Rebuild Rhode Island Tax Credit Program (See Exhibit 1, which
follows, for additional details).*

5. To consider for approval Innovation Vouchers (See Exhibit 1, which follows, for
additional details).*

6. To consider for approval the budget of the Corporation.

7. To consider the utilization of the Corporation’s incentive programs for the investment of
public funds.*

*Board members may convene in Executive Session pursuant to R.I. Gen. Laws § 42-46-5(a)(7)
to consider this Agenda item.

This notice shall be posted at the Office of the Rhode Island Commerce Corporation, at the State
House, and by electronic filing with the Secretary of State’s Office.

Shechtman Halperin Savage, LLP,
Counsel to the Corporation

The location is accessible to the handicapped. Those requiring interpreter services for the
hearing impaired must notify the Rhode Island Commerce Corporation at 278-9100 forty-eight
(48) hours in advance of the meeting. Also, for the hearing impaired, assisted listening devices
are available onsite, without notice, at this location.

Dated: January 24, 2019



EXHIBIT 1

Agenda Hiem 3.

The applicant seeks incentives under the Qualified Jobs Incentive Tax Credit program in relation
to the consolidation and expansion of its manufacturing facilities in Pawtucket, RI. The
company manufacturers packaging, displays and related products.

Agenda Item 4:

The applicant seeks incentives for a 169 room hotel, located in Providence’s [-195
redevelopment district. The total development cost for the project is estimated at approximately
$55.2 million and the applicant is seeking a principal award under the Tax Increment Financing
program of $6.75 million and an award of $100,000 in tax credits under the Rebuild Tax Credit
program. The development sponsor on the application is BAC CVP Aloft LLC, which is
associated with CV Properties LLC and its principal Richard Galvin.

Agenda ltem 5:

The following applicants will be considered for Innovation Vouchers:

Applicant Amount
Dryvit Systems, Inc. $50,000
MIKEL, Inc. $50,000

Mearthane Products Corporation $49,716
Onvector, LLC $42.866

Revolution Cycle Works $50,000




EXHIBITB

Meeting Minutes January 28, 2019




RHODE ISLAND COMMERCE CORPORATION

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF INCENTIVES
UNDER THE QUALIFIED JOBS TAX CREDIT ACT

January 28, 2019

WHEREAS: The Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation”™) was created and
exists as a public corporation, governmental agency and public instrumentality of
the State of Rhode Island and Providence Plantations (the “State”) under Chapter
64 of Title 42 of the General Laws of Rhode Island, as amended (the “Enabling
Act™); and

WHEREAS: Chapter 48.3 of Title 44 of the General Laws of Rhode Island (the “Act™), as
amended, authorizes the Corporation to approve the issuance of tax credits in
relation to the creation of new jobs in the State; and

WHEREAS: The Corporation received an application for incentives under the Act from Custom
and Miller Box Company (together with affiliates, successors and assigns, the
“Recipient”), which is anticipated to result in the creation of new full-time jobs in
the State; and

WHEREAS: The Corporation’s Investment Committee has reviewed and considered the
proposed incentives to the Recipient and has voted to recommend to the Board of
Directors (the “Board™) of the Corporation the approval of the incentives; and

WHEREAS: The Board has received a presentation detailing the proposed incentives together
with a recommendation from the staff of the Corporation to approve the issuance
of incentives to the Recipient in accordance with the Act.

NOW, THEREFORE, acting by and through its Board, the Corporation hereby resolves as follows:
RESOLVED:

1. Toaccomplish the purposes of the Enabling Act and the Act, the Corporation approves the
issuance of the following incentives:

a. Under the Act, tax credits to the Recipient up to the amount of forty-two (42) jobs
not to exceed Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dellars ($7,500) per new fuli-time
job annually.




2.

The authorization provided herein is subject to the following conditions:

a. The execution of an incentive agreement between the Corporation and the Recipient
meeting the requirements of the Act in such form as one of the Authorized Officers
(hereinafter defined) shall deem appropriate in the sole discretion of such Officer;

b. The creation of not less than the minimum required new full-time jobs under the
Jobs Act, which earn no less than Fourteen and 43/100 Dollars ($14.43) a reduction
from the median annual wage requirement as the Recipient meets the definition of
an Economically Fragile Industry; and

c. Such additional conditions as any of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, shall
deem appropriate in the sole discretion of such Officer.

The Board of the Corporation hereby finds and determines that: (a) the approval will
prevent, eliminate, or reduce unemployment or underemployment in the State and will
generally benefit economic development of the State; (b) that, to the extent applicable, the
provisions of RIGL § 42-64-10(a)(1)(ii) through (v) have been satisfied; (c) that the
Recipient has demonstrated an intention to create the requisite number of new full-time
jobs as required under the Act; and (d) the creation of the new full-time jobs would not
occur in the State but for the provision of the tax credits under the Act.

Prior to the execution of an incentive agreement with the Recipient, the Corporation shall
prepare and publicly release an analysis of the impact that the issuance of the incentives
will or may have on the State considering the factors set forth in RIGL § 42-64-10(a)(2) (a
copy of which is annexed hereto as Exhibit 1).

The Authorized Officers of the Corporation for purposes of this Resolution are the Chair,
the Vice Chair, the Secretary of Commerce, the President & CQOO, the Chief Financial
Officer or the Executive Vice President Investment (the “Authorized Officers”). Any one
of the Authorized Officers of the Corporation, acting singly, is hereby authorized to
execute, acknowledge and deliver and/or cause to be executed, acknowledged or delivered
any documents necessary or appropriate to consummate the transactions authorized herein
with such changes, insertions, additions, alterations and omissions as may be approved by
any such Authorized Officers, and execution thereof by any of the Authorized Officers
shall be conclusive as to the authority of such Authorized Officers to act on behalf of the
Corporation. The Authorized Officers of the Corporation shall have no obligation to take
any action with respect to the authorization granted hereunder and the Corporation shall in
no way be obligated in any manner to the Recipient by virtue of having adopted this
Resolution. The Secretary or the Assistant Secretary of the Corporation, and each, acting
singly, is hereby authorized to affix a seal of the Corporation on any of the documents
authorized herein and to attest to the same.



All covenants, stipulations, and obligations and agreements of the Corporation contained
in this Resolution and the documents authorized herein shall be deemed to be covenants,
stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Corporation to the full extent authorized
and permitted by law and such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements shall be
binding upon any board or party to which any powers and duties affecting such covenants,
stipulations, obligations and agreements shall be transferred by and in accordance with the
law. Except as otherwise provided in this Resolution, all rights, powers and privileges
conferred and duties and liabilities imposed upon the Corporation or the members thereof,
by the provisions of this Resolution and the documents authorized herein shall be exercised
and performed by the Corporation, or by such members, officers, board or body as may be
required by law to exercise such powers and perform such duties,

From and after the execution and delivery of the documents hereinabove authorized, any
one of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, are hereby authorized, empowered and
directed to do any and all such acts and things and to execute and deliver any and all such
documents, including, but not limited to, any and all amendments to the documents,
certificates, instruments and agreements hereinabove authorized, as may be necessary or
convenient in connection with the transaction authorized herein. -

All acts of the Authorized Officers which are in conformity with the purposes and intents
of this Resolution and the execution, delivery and approval and performance of such
documents authorized hereby and all prior actions taken in connection herewith are,
ratified, approved and confirmed.

This Resolution shall take effect iinmediately up(-}-ll:iaaiséége.'




EXHIBIT 1




Rhode Island Commerce Corporation

Qualified Jobs incentive Tax Credits — Economic Impact Analysis
Custom & Miller Box Application

Introduction
The Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation”) may issue Quatified Jobs incentive
tax credits fo Custom & Miller Box (“the Company”), a subsidiary of Key Container Corporation
that manufactures corrugated cardboard containers. The credits would be issued in connection
with the Company’s decision o consolidate its existing operations in an existing building located
at 60 Delta Drive in Pawtucket. Consolidation at this new location would result in the addition of
42 jobs to the Company’s Rhode Island operations over the next three years. The Company is
expected to request Qualified Jobs Incentive tax credits with an estimated value of approximately
$612,000.
This analysis was prepared by Appleseed, a consulting firm with more than twenty years of
experience in economic impact analysis.
Jobs Analysis
Annual operations
As noted above, the Company intends o add 42 employees at its new facility during its first three
years. Table 1 summarizes the categories in which these jobs will be created (as of 2022), and
median earnings for each category.

Table 1: Projected employment, 2022

I
5
42

Based on data provided by the Company, and using the IMPLAN input-output modeling system,
Appleseed estimates that in 2022, ongoing operations associated with the 42 full-time jobs the
Company would be committed to adding and maintaining will directly and indirectly support:

s G8 full-time-equivaient (FTE) jobs in Rhode Island,

e $3.625 million in annual earnings (in 2022 dollars);

e  $20.138 million in statewide economic output; and

s Anincrease $5.135 million in Rhode Island’s annual GDP.

These impacts are summarized below in Table 2.

Table 2: Direct, indirect and total annual impact of ongoing operations (employment in FTE;
income, value-added and output in millions of 2022 dollars)

Direct $15.266
“indirect’: AUEARTDY
Total $20.138




In addition to the impacts on employment, earnings, output and state GDP cited above, expansion
of the Company's operations in Rhode Island would generate a projected increase of
approximately $212,000 in annual state tax revenues, including:

e« $136,000 in state personal income taxes paid by workers newly employed by the
Company in its new operations in Rhode Island, or by Rhode Island workers whose jobs
are indirectly attributable to the Company’s new facility;

» $59,000 in state sales taxes paid on those workers’ faxable household spending; and

s $17,000 in state business taxes.

Hiring
Job openings are posted online. Qualified applicants are then selected for interviews, and offers
are extended 1o the most qualified candidates.

Benefits
All Custom & Miller employees are offered health insurance, participation in a 401(k) plan, life
insurance, paid vacation and sick days.

Impact
The state fiscal impact of the requested tax credits is estimated to be approximately $612,000 in
foregone state revenue. Direct and indirect economic and fiscal benefits of the proposed project
include the estimated increase in annual state GDP of $5.1 million in 2022, the estimated
associated job creation, and a gross increase of $2.35 'million in personai income, sales and
business tax revenues during the twelve-year commitment penod beglnnlng in 2020. These
benefits are detailed in the foregoing analysis——— — -
In addition to the economic and tax revenue :mpacts c;ted above, the Company’s consolidation in
its new facility would benefit Rhode Island in other ways, including: )

¢ Retaining existing Company jobs that would otherwise have moved ouf of state

s« Contributing to the ongoing process of economic revitalization in Pawiucket, by

rehabilitating and reactivating a recently vacated industrial property

Beyond the fiscal impact noted above, there is no anticipated financial exposure to the state.
Various features of the Qualified Jobs Incentive program mitigate risk to the state; and the value
of Qualified Jobs Incentive tax credits would be determined on the basis of the number of people
actualty employed and the wages actually paid by the Company.




EXHIBIT C

Meeting Minutes January 28, 2019




RHODE ISLAND COMMERCE CORPORATION

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF TAX CREDITS

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

UNDER THE REBUILD RHODIE ISLAND TAX CREDIT ACT
January 28, 2019

The Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation”) was created and
exists as a public corporation, governmental agency and public instrumentality of
the State of Rhode Island and Providence Plantations (the “State™) under Chapter
64 of Title 42 of the General Laws of Rhode Island, as amended (the “Act”™); and

Chapter 64.20 of Title 42 of the General Laws of Rhode Island (the “Rebuild Rl
Tax Credit Act”), as amended, authorizes the Corporation fo approve the issuance
of tax credits in relation to certain development projects in the State; and

The Corporation promulgated rules and regulations (the “Rules™) governing the tax
credit program established by the Rebuild RI Tax Credit Act. Capitalized terms
used herein but not defined shall have the meaning as set forth in the Rules; and

The Corporation received an application for tax credits from BAC CVP Aloft LLC
(the “Recipient”) under the Rebuild RI Tax Credit Act in relation to a Commercial
Project (the “Project”™) located at the corner of Dyer Street, Dorrance Street, and
Clifford Street in Providence, Rhode Island, which is proposed to consist of a 169-
room hotel; and '

The Corporation’s Investment Committee has reviewed and considered the
proposed issuance of tax credits and a sales and use tax exemption to the Recipient
and has voted to recommend to the Board of Directors (the “Board™} of the
Corporation the approval of the tax credits and tax exemption; and

The Board of the Corporation received a presentation inclusive of a term sheet
detailing the Project and proposed incentives together with a recommendation from
the staff of the Corporation to approve the issuance of tax credits and a sales and
use tax exemption to the Recipient in accordance with the Rebuild RI Tax Credit
Act and the Rules.




NOW, THEREFORE, acting by and through its Board, the Corporation hereby resolves as follows:

RESOLVED:

1. To accomplish the purposes of the Act and the Rebuild RI Tax Credit Act, the
Corporation approves the issuance of tax credits to the Recipient in an amount not to
exceed One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) and authorizes a sales and use tax
exemption in addition to the tax credits of One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars
($1,500,000) with any sales and use tax exemption exceeding said amount reducing the
tax credits awarded hereunder dollar for doliar.

2. The authorization provided herein is subject to the following conditions:

a. The execution of an Incentive Agreement between the Corporation and the
Recipient meeting the requirements of the Rebuild RI Tax Credit Act and the Rules
in such form as one of the Authorized Officers (hereinafter defined) shall deem
appropriate in the sole discretion of such Officer;

b. Verification by the Corporation of compliance with the Eligibility Requirements of
Rule 6 of the Rules prior to Certification of any award of tax credits to the
Recipient; and '

¢. Such additional conditions as any of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, shall
deem appropriate in the sole discretion of such Officer.

3. The Board of the Corporation hereby finds and determines that: (i) the approval will
prevent, eliminate, or reduce unemployment or underemployment in the State and will
generally benefit economic development of the State; (ii) that, to the extent applicable,
the provisions of RIGL § 42-64-10(a)(1)(ii) through (v) have been satisfied; (ii1) that
the Recipient’s Equity in the Project is not less than twenty percent (20%:) of the total
Project Cost and otherwise meets the Project Cost criteria of the Rebuild RI Tax Credit
Act; (iv) there is a Project Financing Gap for the Project such that after taking into
account all available private and public funding sources, the Project is not likely to be
accomplished by private enterprise without the incentives described in the Act and the
Rules; (v) the total amount of tax credits awarded for the Project is the lesser of twenty
(20%) of the total Project Cost or the amount needed to close the Project Financing
Gap; (vi) that the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation has provided written
confirmation required by the Rebuild RI Tax Credit Act (a copy of which is annexed
hereto as Exhibit 1); (vii) the Secretary of Commerce has provided written confirmation

required by the Rebuild RI Tax Credit Act (a copy of which is annexed hereto as Exhibit ™~

1); (viii) the Office of Management and Budget has provided written confirmation
required under the Rebuild RI Tax Credit Act (a copy of which is annexed hereto as
Exhibit 2); and (ix} the Recipient has demonstrated that it will otherwise satisfy the
Eligibility Requirements of Rule 6 of the Rules for a Mixed-Use Project.



Prior to the execution of an Incentive Agreement with the Recipient, the Corporation
shall prepare and publicly release an analysis of the impact that the issuance of the tax
credits will or may have on the State considering the factors set forth in RIGL § 42-64-
10(a)(2) (a copy of which is annexed hereto as Exhibit 3).

The Authorized Officers of the Corporation for purposes of this Resolution are the
Chair, the Vice Chair, the Secretary of Commerce, the President, the Chief Financial
Officer or the Managing Director, Head of Investments (the “Authorized Officers”).
Any one of the Authorized Officers of the Corporation, acting singly, is hereby
authorized to execufe, acknowledge and deliver and/or cause to be executed,
acknowledged or delivered any documents necessary or appropriate to'consummate the
transactions authorized herein with such changes, insertions, additions, alterations and
omissions as may be approved by any such Authorized Officers, and execution thereof
by any of the Authorized Officers shall be cenclusive as to the authority of such
Authorized Officers to act on behalf of the Corporation, The Secretary or the Assistant
Secretary of the Corporation, and each, acting singly, is hereby authorized to affix a
seal of the Corporation on any of the documents authorized herein and to attest to the
same.

All covenants, stipulations, and obligations and agreements of the Corporation
contained in this Resolution and the documents authorized herein shall be deemed to
be covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Corporation to the full
extent authorized and permitted by law and such covenants, stipulations, obligations
and agreements shall be binding upon any board or party to which any powers and
duties affecting such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements shall be
transferred by and in accordance with the law. Except as otherwise provided in this
Resolution, all rights, powers and privileges conferred and duties and liabilities
imposed upon the Corporation or the members thereof, by the provisions of this
Resolution and the documents authorized herein shall be exercised and performed by
the Corporation, or by such members, officers, board or body as may be required by
law to exercise such powers and perform such duties.

From and after the execution and delivery of the documents hereinabove authorized,
any one of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, are hereby authorized, empowered
and directed to do any and all such acts and things and to execute and deliver any and
all such documents, including, but not limited to, any and all amendments to the
documents, certificates, instruments and agreements hereinabove authorized, as may
be necessary or convenient in connection with the transaction authorized herein.

All acts of the Authorized Officers which are in conformity with the purposes and
intents of this Resolution and the execution, delivery and approval and performance
of such documents authorized hereby and all prior actions taken in connection
herewith are, ratified, approved and confirmed.

i
[
5




EXHIBIT 1




From: Stefan Pryor, Secretary of Commerce and Chief Executive Officer of the Rhode Island
Commerce Corporation
Jesse Saglio, President of the Rhode Island Commerce Corporation

To: Board of Directors, Rhode Island Commerce Corporation
Re: Rebuild Rhode Island Tax Credit Application
Date: January 28, 2019

‘The staff of the Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation™} is recommending to the
Board of Directors that it approve tax credits pursuant to the Rebuild Rhode Island Tax Credit program.
The recommendation is as follows:

s To consider the application of BAC CVP Aloft LLC for tax credits of One Hundred Thousand
Dollars ($100,000) for a commercial project.

This memo serves as the written confirmation, pursuant to Rhode Island General Laws § 46-64.20-
6, of the following:

1. The Corporation staff has reviewed the application submitted and the impact analysis for this
project {the impact analysis is provided to the Board as an exhibit to the approving resolution
for the project). '

2. The project is consistent with the purpose of the Rebuild Rhode Island Tax Credit Act, R.L
Gen. Laws § 42-64.20-1 ef seg.

3. Thetotal credits to be awarded to the applicant shall not be in excess of the amount listed above.



EXHIBIT 2



DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

OFFICE of MANAGEMENT & BUDGET ‘ Office: (401) 574-8430
Omne Capitol Hill 4
Providence, RI (2908-5800

From: Jonathan Womer, Director of the Office of Management and Budg
Te:  Board of Directors, Rhode Island Commerce Corporation
Re:'  Rebuild Rhode Island Tax Credit Applications

Date: January 28, 2019

The staff of the Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation™) has informed the
Office of Management and Budget (“OMB™) that it intends to recommend to the Corporation’s Board of
Directors (the “Board™) one project for the receipt of tax credits under the Rebuild Rhode Island Tax
Credit in an additional amount not to exceed $100,000.00. That recommendation is as follows:

1. That the application submitted by BAC CVP Aloft LLC be approved for tax credits in a
maximum amount of $100,000.00.

As of December 17, 2018, the Corporation had approved tax credits and/or loans under the
program in the amount of $111,304,827.92. The approval of an additional $100,000.00 in tax credits
would bring the cumulative total of approved credits and/or loans $111,404,827.92. Currently $49.7
million dollars have been appropriated into the Rebuild Rhode Island Tax Credit Fund, Additional
funding is expected in futare legislative sessions and section 42-64.20-5(f) of the Rhode Island General
Laws authorized aggregate tax credits and/ot loans under the Rebuild Rhode Island Tax Credit program in
an amount not to exceed $150 million. Accordingly, the existing and anticipated revenue capacity for the
Rebuild Rhode Island Tax Credit program exceeds the total amount of credits and/or loans that are
proposed for approval. As a result, OMB confirms that the additional amount of credits and/or loans
proposed above, i.e. $100,000.00, does not exceed the existing and anticipated revenue capacity of the
state for the Rebuild Rhode Island Tax Credit program. In addition, OMB confirms that, with the
approval of the proposed credits and/or loans, the aggregate credits and/or loans approved by the
Corporation under the Rebuild Rhode Island program will not exceed the maximum aggregate credits
and/or foans allowed under the program.

Furthermore, based on information provided by the Corporation staff concerning the anticipated
completion schednle of the projects that are the subject of these applications and the likely distribution of
credits and/or loan proceeds over the five-year payment period, OMB anticipates the budget impact to the
state of the credits and/or loans, if approved, in the year of application and in subsequent years will be as
set forth in the attached Exhibit A.

The memorandum constitutes OMB’s written confirmation pursuant to RIGL § 42-64.20-6(a)(4)
and pursuant to 8§70-RICR-30-00-3.12(A)(3) (Rules and Regulations for the Rebuild Rhode Island Tax
Credit Program). Pursuant to RIGL § 42-64.20-5(m), any disbursements to support the redemption of tax
credits for 90% of their value are subject to appropriations, and applicants should be notified accordingly.

STATE OF RHODE ISL.AND AND PROVIDENCE PLANTATIONS S




Frujects Confirmtad g of 12516
Brums Cagitad Pasers,
John b Corcomn & Co.

Frojeas Confirmed as of 27206
Waldasf Cpirad Maragement
Caae Memd fmspersiiom, LLE

Frujects Confirmad as of 37436
Froviderce Capigal 1
76 Fountain IV ez, 1LC

Sobootal;

Subioal:

Wanlieslopmes s Oasi Develapment

Prnjects Cangivmied a5 of 5 0516
AT Criss Coupany

Frajects Confirmesd as of $2335
Union MiltLEC

Prujects Confismed ns 6 2236
DrATslva Wi Jioted 13C
hcean Seste Tebbers, I

Frojects Canfinmed as 81075

&uremal:
Subletal:

Sublotal:

Subletal:

Fouby Firatis & Ingedisnds US4, Ine

Frifeces Confinued n 23296
Lippint t4ILLC

Frojects Conflmied a5 $ 2616
Usban Sman Groveth, LG
Moy al (hiks Reahy, LLC

Frofecss Confinmed as /2116
Cay afHorpan

Profeces Conflrmed as 137216
Chestne Commenr
Vg Pulse

Sublet

Sublelat:

Suteotal:

Subanin:

Sublotal:

FY206
5040
5000
5000

b3y U
5000
3000
o0

FY2006
5000
5000

5000
5000

Fizue
subD
3000

a0
S0
s

Fuane
s0.00
su00
3000

Fiis
50.00
So00

e
5000
au

File
- 5000
sten
5000

R
50.00
1000

ans
50.00
000
30,00

Fyaoir
s0.00
0w
soou

F2807

5000
0w

A
5080
so60

5000
500

iz
SEALLG 0
5000080

Fi2a?
sa00
so0e

Fuen
S0
s
5040

W
5000
000

e
5000
o

e
S000
s000
5000

FYHE
S000
2000

3514
50,00

LI 52430
$30192450

Fuany
SETIGHE 00
S1ETE000.00
S2312688.00
R
s000

3000

2000

2300

$34GAE580
S1ABOA0D
5109235000
FLHGTEIE0

Fuitng
330,005 061
SEOL0000

FaBIE
S804
ST W60

FZ0IR
SIIABA
567000000
589339900

FR0IE
53533100
$35,30400

201K
S420701.00
5474901 60

FIK
§T1105200
[LLERERE

SL,URIGTR

Vo

wop
008

208

00
S35EEM 0
S5LE0I00

s
3615100
$971083.33

$1,8168M. 33

M
[
Wi
S008

oo

SACHGM0
SLIBO200

FoERt )

W20
TS 20060
S8 06

P08
S213, 358 00
FEIPR G
589335800
2
S350
$35300.00
P20
3400
S40700 60

201
§203.90200
FHAAS0

S12E2AGTR0

Fy2oie

3060
$00.

FY2me
5000
233696740
TIILAD

FY2020
I4RL5IERO
1o 13

$1,961,681.33

A
000

2000

006
ume
SECTITED
$1.220024 00
SMERN
524590150
Funs
stumaty
SEOL00.00
name
ST5350.00
$rs e
FYan
S2TIINE00
00000
$39239E.00
Fyzio
535300

S

2@y
$420700.00
A2, T000

260
$713.021.60
§503.435.00

SELAZIG00

e

5009
St

3134567 30
S15996240

a5
$481.706.00
(ST ER Y
FIARLGS

fayiot
30.00
000
So00

sl
34554040
F12BEM00

SRHLH00

S2IVOEAL

Bzm
FIR00500
S5R00000
)
STB24040
STIS.2E0 60

L
SEIN00
562000000
389339300

el
$55,39408
$53,398 00
Fam
420,705
$320,700 00
e
M3
303,695 09
L2366
20
s
sum

FYzes

50,00
UL
$821.200.40

Exhibic &

Fiseal Yenr mpact of Proposed Rebuild Rhodé Isknd Tax Credt Projots

i
459500
70033

$1,461,58%.33

A
080

G

suon
e
U
23,0030
SREG000
227090
Fiamz
5000

wwm

FYm:
S5, 20060
STI5.260.50

R
327338500
SEINDDO D
582339800

Py
35539100
58536410

Fam
42030000
$20.700.60

Pz
183100
5503430

§1,237,365.90

Fya001

5000
soe

[apin

S060
£356,53530
SISESLE50

Fy2om
5080
5960
so0

203
5040
5040
st

fakllay
3000
007
s
7 0m

iz
Subn

Funm
S0.00
S0.00

om
5000
so00
3000

nam
52000000

2000000

N
800

(e
)
5400

E=E AL A
533512730

Ao
su00
s000
sop0

Firey
S0t
000
5000

nrm
50.00
S0

- 3000
3u00
P
50.00
5000
o
000
3000
Geh
5000
0.0
5000
FYum
31010000
S20,000.00

ety
3000
3000
am
o0
[T
seon

E¥yind
sem
B0

Rz
5500
§335,12730
SIS0

3%
3600
1600
1000

Fis
wor
0o
[

s
000
o
00
000

s
Wi
008

s
00
S04

s
0.0
s
008

nms
320400 00
2000003
yvms
“som
sem
F2ms
5000
seog
5000

Fonws
se.00

50,00
P20
S0
£335,197.90
533572730

Funze
soeo
5000
S0

e
S0
st00
20,00

Furee
50.00
supo
s000
5000

e
U
5000

Fang
s000
3000

Frms
3000
W00
so00

Fams
S0
000

¥ms
5600
3000
s
1000
taon
sen

FVi?
Sovo
5000
000

e
so00
5000
3000

2w
3000
000
so
soun

27
2000
soo

Fue?
so00
S0

e
5000
060
soeo

nne?
5060
060
A
BT
3000

0

5000

g
5000
80,00

P
3000
s0.00
000

T2
o o0
- 000

me
3000
3000

G T

Suw
Sou

TVa0ek
5600
5000

it
3000
S0
3000

FuHEe
suee
000
S060

e

s000
5000

Frziny
3000
S0
060
27

70
000
supo

Fyzieg
su00
30.00

Py
3000
$0.00

Famy
s0u0
3000

Fyzzy
so.00
2000

ams

5000
5000
Fiym
s060
3000
P
5000
Sou
3000

St
Shin

e
0w
seop

Fi2080
5000
3000

FYHo0
3000
2000
s

soou
3080

FYas0
3000
5060

Fr2mp
3000
5660
som

Fuain
sho0
5000

Fy2ose
3000
e
so00

3301
S0
000
LU

s
W
00
s

Bz
g0
S0t
173

Lt

)
s
U

L
s000
5008

2]
S0t
0.0
snm

Fiaa
suoo
000

Ty
o0
10.00

Fyaea
Se.0
Suwo
Su0o

Fzodl
svon
5000

FYHe1
$0.00
S0
3000

e
S040
50.00
s0.00

M
50.00
So00
5000

Fuwz
000
000
2000
2000

3300
$0.00
So00

o
5000
3000

Frive
3000
2000
S0.00

FY20n
sov
50.00

Fyuist
LT
3000

Fran
3000
000
o0

3520
S
o0

e
5000
[
s800

S0
saon
5000

5000
s
soon

Fua00
$000
5000

0 _

000

$npn
Fram:
soos
008
S0

Fua
soo
5008

FLI
<000
5009

Fuaws
00
soae
5000

Fi203

006

3000
s
S0
S0.00
Su08

N
SO0
3098
so00

Fraoa
100
sode
5000

Fiznd
2w
3000

100
2040

ALY
5000
S04

e
S
S0

FuiM
4000
5000
o

P
Fa)
3000

avlat)

o8

3900

R
5000
000
1000
P
3000
so0

Fuian
5000
5000
S

ams
BT
W
5000

FyEe
5000
$50D
s

Pz
600
S

500
300

s
00
s

s
suo
spin

B
LT
00
$0:00

s
s003
soos

RS
U0

U
su03
s008
8006

Vs
3000
sups

s
s0oo
$0:00
s0.08

FY2me
5000

500

Fi2e
$000
00

P

“s000
bl

Fi2038
par)
30.00
50.00

nme

000

K
S0.00
3000
5000

Todot
bairol
585.583,33332
SEMGIBA

Total
000
E
S0

Tousl
33,636,082 20
SELLSNIR0
SHESTH00
SIZSUST5EI0

Tolal
40000000
oot

Totat
$3.626.40300
SHE1H40300

Toush
SELIEINL X
SR00,000 00
SAEIN 00

Totat .
2363000
SIESIL0

Tout
S2008,301 00
S2103.50000

Tea!
Sh36RASTO0
2SR
S6,086,533.00

Tein! X

s000
00

Total
000
IHI0.50790
ST




Frojants Confirmed as 12347
Drencity
Subtotal:
Frofeas Canfirmadar 2072 F
SAT Desclupisent LUC
Ao Travet Opersiionss IS Inc.
Kublalat:

Projects Confirmed ns 3917
L Panies, LLC
Wentond Sames £ T edmokoqy, 11 "
Case Mesd Amsoastion, LLE
Sutaolal

Frojucne Canfirmed as 37237
T 10 Sbun Htel LLE
110 et sin, LLC and 730 Memth Mz
Managemen, 1L

Subdotal:
Prejects Confirared as 100017
Waldorf Capital Partnors 11"
Soliotat:
Fryjects Canfismed us L2 T
olm Crzens Holdimgs 1180
Sohintal:
Frofecs Canfirned as 123877
Camizh Astotiones LP (B 0H
Inforys Limzed
Shbietl:
Projecs Canfimned 0513978
Sprague Sreet Chimes, 1L
Subdalal:
Frojects Canfirmed as 43898
Tsmunex Kot island Comporation
Sublatat;
Projecys Canfimed as 52106
Eletr Brad Cespoeation
Infarity hfeat Sohaint, 11C
Sulkotat:
ProjrarConfirmul as 8T8 2018
Rebius Therspestics, Inc
Suttatal:
Projtets Confimoad at HASL0M
Seeple S B, LAL
Onefars, 110
Subtowl:
Pryfects Confinred s 22716
Cay of Hewpont™
Subtotal:

e
3000
30.00

Fyang
5000
$000
o6

FY30i6
st
3000
so0
3000

Fi2026
5000

5000
S000

Fliog
)
3000

P06
5000
G

P
0.0
0o
S04

_ FY2016
sube
st

g
5000
5000

Y2016
SO0
3000
5000

Fyzue
3000
5000

Fy2015
50.00
5000
30.00

e
S0.00
w00

3040

Fuanl
5060

5000
5000

R
000
3000

T
f00
000

ey
000
000
000

a0
s000
5000

Fizol?
5002
so.0b

2017
3000
s
5000

2FLR
5000
steo

o
000
$000
st

R
5000
5000

FY2018
3000
000

208
5000
S2B6T5.00
LT

Fires
3000
5000

ST
ST

jar L]
000

005
003

sty
so02
b

b2yt
5000
30.00

Fr2olf
sow

$225, 00050
F22BH00 0
P08
5000

s002

FI0E
R
20.00

Fuaeg
3000
2000
5004

Liy 1]
oo
00

g
000
S0
soin

3t
s0.06
$0.00

e
5000
T3

a1
S200 00 0
SIS0
350117500

0
5009
SHEMPMLLY
SH110 00
SEANE ML

hari ]
120,00.00

SE00H00 B0
SaNAB G

Fraoim
SEINOTION
240LLTTO00

Fitus
3000000
$390.000 00

PN
Sv00
SI67.50000
SIS730000

Iy
S2000800
530000

0
st
5005

V019
30
0.0
Se0p

S
S0
3080

Lt
S0
5060
S060

F2us
5002
S0t

Fan0
5000
5000

Fy2een
SMEI00
FWAST500
3452,475.00

TR0

53,000K0 60
3162098700

SLIG0H0
9,938,742 00

0
320,000.00

600,001 00
SEA0.H0

¥ame
SE68.071.00
369507100

e
52500500
532500000

e

S8 T0GE 00
513250008
S3413,368.00

FYame
526005000
S200H20.00

Wamo
SER0000
SEODH00 00

e

s000
$38390000
130000

i
R
3000

FYI09
S
000
0

aae
§70343000
STIAT 00

Fraem
suee
5060

e
SHAO250.00
203,675,008
$IS2IIS U0

Fyimt
IRO0L0000
S1LEMII200
TS0
S4588341.00
Fam
S0 00

£800000 00
SEA0M 00

T

Sees T 0
Ses0R00

Py
SISO
Sa0800.00

e
SLOEI60

RSO
53.688.27760

Pz
200,600 00
30000000

Fmy
L0000
5650000 00

el
885,000 00
3800000
SEHO00

o
FUEEEUT
55500000

P2zt
STEH0000
80000000
S2LONL
WL
S475.625.00
475,435 U0

namt
50,00
se00

Fizm
SRS
5203 5H0
FREET

FYIm2
S3.0w00
SLEHRE2 L0

S3738509
SASEMLK

iz
$20.000.60

161000000
IEM00060

Fm

SEI507LH0
SE9507LL0

3y ie]
$193.000.40
100000

an
S1LI54I300

SIL236000
$1,8593200

b3 r3Y
S200008.00
320000600

FYzEn
SEUH0000
$690,00000

Fuaa
3462,500 08
SO0 00
SHSS000

nan
SEH00N00
SASOLO000

nnm
F1AU00 00

SA00L0 E0
524000 0

3510
STLI 0
47562500

$12938000
5000
$£40150.00

Fires
53,000,000 00
516758200

3000
$1,67058300
el
$20,000.00

S600.005 03
SEU000 00
baricil
s8e3 070D
SUS0TL06
e
315500000
$355,000.00
FY2003
§1,725,433 60
s0m
§1,745,433 @0
fak iy
5200900 DX
320080010
g isa)
SE00,L00.00
SESCO00.00
Labllt]
29050000
S352.000.00
FEIY SO0
Py
F540.000 60
550,000 060
Fyamy
1,500
SORLO00 00
A2 teeo0 0
nInd
5336, 713.00
$356. 71,09

Foaed
5000
300

o
50.00

20.00

30,00

¥y
SHUO0AL0
000

HE4
23,600,009 00
and
[L15]

0,08

s000

REIT)

$0.00

3000
Fraoid
Souk

60

P2
ALTEA
$040

SLIS A0

Fraud
sUL0
50.00

nm

369060000
90000

e
000000
SIM00
867300000

nams
SR U0V
FSsupia0s

Y2
3900,006 00
560000000

SLI00000.00

o
£356, 715 00
SIENL

s

oo
s
SR
30,06
s
Frims
sv0n
5600
000
3000

Fiams

5000
5000
Funs

5000
3000

PIRs
So00
3000

Pams
s600
5000
00

vt
[
009
P2
003
5046

Fyams
S0
s
S285,00000
Frzms
S5000000
S350.000.00
s
sooo
Sen0uo 00
$800.000 00

Faais

50.00

Rge
So00
Suoo

e
w00

W

s
stoe
spo

000

P06
Sudh
b

su00

5000
5000

FY26

soey

FYIme
s
5040
5000

jablitd
S0
5000

Rt TTS
20,00
10,00

s
T2FO0

50000

e
00
S0

Fyams
S0
80,05
o0

Fraté
Seu0
3000

Fize?
5060
S0
SO0
s000

A
5000
040
S0.00

any
1000
w0

e
0
suon

a0
sove
ok
008

Frao
s0.0
sooR

Im?
5000
5000

Fam?
ST

§750000

A
sooe
5000

FYzia?
LT
3000
000

a1l
2000
3000

[3YL0]
3900
s

Fi2as
000
suop
5008

Funms
1000
S0.00

e
0,00
So00
000

s
5800
S0

s

000

aitt)
$1500040
50.00
1560009

e
5000
50.00

3%
5000
5000
5050

FY?00R
5000
So00

Fi2e
5000
5000

Bany
5000
s000
5000

Fymy
3000
000
LT
00

vy
S
090
5000

Foains
s002
5009

Frine
5000
5000

Fy2m0
3000
e
5000

ims
000
$000

amy
5000
o0

PRl
$12,260.00
5000
1250000

Fyzmy
00
0

s
S0
suth
000

me

S0
s

fabi
5000
300
Frzme
5000
500
suw
FYa0sh
sat
5000
5000
5000

Fizug
30D
30.00
3000

Fue
000
5800

Yo
S0
00

iamo
(2]
s
W

VI
su0e
5000

Frzos
S0
5000

Fy2sD
§15(0:00
Sa00
STS0000

Fuaan
5000
3000

Py
3009
000
5800

Yo
3000
3000

Pzl
o

R T
suoe
50,00
50,00

Fiast
s0.00
5000
500
081

Fu3031
o
so0n
5000

Al
S0.00
S04

Ay
Suto
3000

Fuamt
se00
5000
joun

L2y
008
$h:03

Ty
L
5000

20

ST50000
50,00
S1M006

61
soo0
5040

W
St
3000
5000

Foam
su00
1000

m

1000

s
113
soor
900

205
04
S0
sooz
su

v
w000
50.00
w000

Fy252
S0
S0

Fyaur
$000
Su00

2
5000
sowo
S0

Pz
10.00
1000

32
3000
o0

£Yzen
52250004

S000
331,000

FIRs
i
008

P
s0.00
3000
5000

P08
5000
soow

P
3000
5000
50
1000

wann
KL
000
F

ot
0o
500
vt H
s0m
000

(530
3000
S60
5080

sooe
5000
BT
sotg
000

s
$1230000

so0e
123000

3000
60

70
5000
sou
S0

000
su00

Fo
soo
suop

Fiaan
s
3000
2000

L
S0
S0
W00
suto

5
suin
S0
oo

20

sou
5000

Fron
5008
5000
5000

F4
005
000

Fuam
R
50.00

M
ST
LT
S7swo

Py
'
St

e
s0L0
Su00
s003

Fizn

s0.00
50.00

wms
00
$000

nous
3000
S0
5000
Se00

Fyams
5080
S0
S0

FY2es

000

208
2000
so00

s
S0.00
5000
w00

Ey7ms
s000

B2
S000
00

NS
[3XET0
009
§73u000

s
B ]
000

Fanss
000
5000
5000

V085
S0l
sa0

FY3086
5060
5000

Fiam¢
5000
S0
su00

Frns
3000
10.00
Aol
000

s
5000
5800
[

FNI0i6
a3
soup

e
300
80,00

P06
3006
woe
5000

FY206
5060
S

FY20E
5000
3000

FY2436
$230.00
5000
250,00

Fuss
30.00
20.00

FY203
3000
sav)
5000

e

S50
o

Toul
5000
3000

Total
589500000
SLOISSMO0
SZOIEIM 00

Tunat
515,000,00800
SEAMBI0
1138879840
SIS0

Tatal

100,00 03
$3,006,000 0
S3,105.00000

Tonl
53,425,356.00
§3475.356.00

Total
S1,10,00000
S130,00000

Totad
£11,502,58500
ST0L0050
1265288900,

Totol
19000004,
LN

Tatal
53.450,00000
5345000000

Tousl
20000000
SLOLED0A00
351500000

Tt
$2750,00500
1273000000

Total
SO0 00
000090
SSORED N

Total
SRAmITON
239023 08




Frojecss Confimmed as 12279 6
BACCVF ARAILC 5000
Submst; 5040

el
ALLFOJECTS TOTAL: 5060
Notes
L River Rowse
{2 Ameaded
{3) Chestont Compazss
4) Dowssiy T

a0t
S0.06
soop

087

SIFLIPED

¥V20E iy
5000 {1
040 LT
Famy Faoie

SOIAIEI0 ST

FV2mD
3000
5000

Framo

RUGYLEIZAE]

Fiam
S0
53000000

Ao

LEERITE R o)

Fam
SR
320,600.00

e

SN.4502%5 83

513,063,083 30

Fy0zs Fumns
SHMN00  SHH0000
SHEO0 SN0

Fuateg FYms

58930248 30 $1.800,13730

FY206
S04
5000

FLize

$7.50010

Fian?
so0e
3000

Fri?

$150008

Py
so00
00

avu]

S15.00000

Fi2E8

5009

Fies

31230000

P
S0
5000

Fyze0

ST500.00

Pz
$040
soom

o

$7,50060

P
30,00
060

Y

SN0

Fyaa)
300
00

FYa0)

LS00

FueM
3000
5009

5750000

U
2000
5060

FYuE

5250000

FY2836
5010
suee

2

STAOL

Foeol
220000000
310000000

Tatal

$111,404.627 52




EXHIBIT 3




Rhode Island Commerce Corporation

Rebuild Rhode Island Tax Credits — Economic Impact Analysis

BAC CVP Aloft LLC Application

Introduction

The Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation”) may provide Rebuild Rhode Island
tax credits to BAC CVP Aloft LLC (the "Sponsor”). The credits would be provided in connection
with the Sponsor's proposed investment in the development of the Aloft Providence Hotel, a new
169-room select-service hotel that would be located on a site adjacent to the iife sciences complex
that is being developed in the 1-185 Redevelopment District.

The Sponsor estimates the total cost of the project to be $55.2 million. The Sponsor is requesting
Rebuild Rhede Island tax credits totaling $100,000 (gross), an exemption from sales and use
taxes payable on purchases of construction materials, valued at approximately $1.5 million, and
a tax increment financing (TIF) loan of $6.75 million.

This analysis was prepared by Appleseed, a consulting firm with more than twenty years of
experience in economic impact analysis.

Jobs Analysis
Construction

As shown in Table 1, the Sponsor's estimate of total project cost is approximately $55.2 million.

Table 1: Estimated total project cost ($ millions)

Property acquisitio $1.0
_'_Construction' (hard costs) T Sl 402
Soft costs o 8.0
Fixtures, furniture and eguipment - o~ oL B0
Total $55.2

After excluding certain expenditures that do not have a direct, current impact on Rhode Island’s
economy (such property acquisition and interest costs), spending on development of the
proposed project is estimated {o total approximately $53.2 million.



Appleseed estimates that direct expenditures of $53.2 million will directly and indirectly generate:

e 347 person-years' of work in Rhode Island, with $21.8 million in earnings (in 2020 dollars),

s Approximately $62.9 million in statewide economic output?, and

s A one-time increase of $33.5 million in Rhode Island’s GDP.
These impacts are summarized below in Table 2. The project's direct impact is the impact of the
Sponsor's direct spending on construction, including both hard and soft costs. Its indirect impact
is the effect of spending by contractors for goods and services (insurance, construction materials,
efc.) purchased from other Rhode Island businesses.

Table 2: Direct, indirect and induced impact of construction and related spending
{employment in person-years; income, value-added and output in millions of 2020 dollars)

Direct Effect 262 $16.8 $25.5 $49.6
Indirect Effect 85 50 8.0 $13.3
Total Effect 347 $21.8 $33.5 $62.9

in addition to the impacts on employment, earnings, output and state GDP cited in Table 2, direct
spending of $53.2 million would generate a projected one-time increase of approximately $1.279
in taxes paid to the State during construction, including:

s $819,000 in state personal income taxes paid by Rhode Island workers employed on the
project, or whose jobs are indirectly attributable to the project;

s $357,000 in state sales taxes paid on those workers’ taxable household spending; and

o $103,000 in state business taxes.

The activity reflected in Table 2 will oceur primarily in 2019 and 2020.

The anticipated wage rates for construction jobs are shown below in Table 3. Anticipated wage
rates are the median hourly wage for these occupations in Rhode Island, as of 2017.

! A person-year is equivalent to the time worked by one person who is employed full-time for a year. It could
for example represent the work of iwe people who are each employed full-time for six months; or the work
of one person who is employed half-time for two years.

2 Quiput is a measure of the total sales by Rhode Island companies (including the “sale” of labor by Rhode
{sland households) generated by the project.




Tahle 3: Anticipated wages during construction

Architect _ $40.36
Construction manager. .- - -~ 34710
Carpenter o - %2282
CElectrician 0 o 0 T i $27.42
FPlumber _ L $27.71
‘Painter o e e $18.85
L aborer $19.39

Fringe benefits associated with these jobs are expected to be in accordance with industry norms,
with the cost of such benefits generally ranging between 22 and 28 percent of wages. Workers
who fill these jobs are expected {o be drawn primarily from the Providence-Warwick RI-MA New
England City and Town Area (NECTA).

Annual operations

The Aloft Providence Hotel and its restaurant fenant are assumed to begin operating in late 2020.
Based on information provided by the Sponsor, Appleseed esfimates that upon stabilization in
2022, the hote] itself will directly employ 63 workers; and the restaurant will directly employ 37.

Based on these projections, we estimate (as shown in Table 4) that in 2022, ongoing operations
would directly and indirectly support:

s 118 jobs in Rhode Island, with approximately $4.9 million in annual earnings {(in 2022
dollars);

« $15.1 million in annual statewide economic output; and

» Anincrease of nearly $9.3 million in Rhode [sland’s annual GDP.

Table 4: Direct, indirect and total impact of building and commercial tenant operafions, 2021
{employment in FTE; earnings, value-added and output in millions of 2021 dollars)

3 Rhode island Department of Labor and Training, Occupational Employment Statistics, 2017




Direct Effect 100 $3.8 $7.5 $12.0

Indirect Effect 18 1.1 1.8 3.1

Total Effect 118 $4.9 $9.3 $15.1

in addifion fo the impacts on employment, earnings, output and state GDP cited in Table 4,
ongoing operations would generate a projected gross increase of approximately $1.649 million in
taxes paid to the state in 2022, including:

s $1.129 million in state hotel taxes
o $231,000 on restaurant and bar sales taxes
 $185,000 in state personal income taxes paid by Rhode Island workers employed by the
hotel and restaurant, or whose jobs are indirectly attributable to the operations of those
businesses
s  $81,000 in state sales taxes paid on those workers’ taxable household spending
» $23,000 in state business taxes
Workers employed by the hotel and restaurant would be drawn primarily from Providence and
surrounding communities.

Impact

The state fiscal impact of the requested {ax credit and sales tax exemption is approximately $1.6
million in foregone state tax revenue. Direct and indirect economic and fiscal benefits of the
proposed project include an estimated increase in annual state GDP (in 2022} of approximately
$9.3 million; the associated job creation; and a gross increase of approximately $20.969 million
in hotel, personal income, sales and business tax revenues directly and indirectly generated by
the project during the construction phase, and by ongoing operations during the twelve years from
2021 through 2032.

in addition to the economic and fax revenue impacts cited above, the proposed project would
benefit Rhode Island in several cther ways:

« By increasing the supply of hotels available to support continued growth in the Innovation
District and Downcity Providence

s By creating jobs that will be accessible to workers with a high schoo! education

+ By increasing local real property and personal property taxes

Beyond the fiscal impact noted above, there is no anticipated financial exposure o the state.
Various features of the Rebuild Rhode lIsland program mitigate other risks to the state. In
particular, the completion risk {i.e., the risk that the project is not completed) is mitigated by the
fact that the requested tax credits will be issued only upon completion of the development. The




risk of project cost overruns is mitigated by the fact that state’s participation would be capped at
the amounts set forth above.




RHODE ISLAND COMMERCE CORPORATION
RESCLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF TAX CREDITS
UNDER THE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ACT

January 28, 2019

WHEREAS: The Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation”) was created and exists as a public
corporation, governmental agency and public instrumentality of the State of Rhode Island and
Providence Plantations (the “State™) under Chapter 64 of Title 42 of the General Laws of Rhode
Island, as amended (the “Act™); and

WHEREAS: Chapter 64.21 of Title 42 of the General Laws of Rhode Island (the “TIF Act”), as amended,
authorizes the Corporation to approve the issuance of incentives in relation to certain
development projects in the State; and

WHEREAS: The Corporation pramulgated rufes and regulations (the “Rules™) governing the program
established by the TIF Act. Capitalized terms used herein but not defined shall have the
meaning as set forth in the Rules; and

WHEREAS: The Corporation received an application for a “TIF Incentive” from BAC CVP Aloft LLC
(the “Recipient™) under the TIF Act in relation to a project (the “Project™) located at the
corners of Dyer Street, Dorrance Street, and Clifford Street in Providence Rhode Island,
which is proposed to consist of a 169-room hotel;

WHEREAS: The Corporation’s Investment Committee has reviewed and considered the proposed issuance of the
TIF Incentive to the Recipient and has voted to recommend to the Board of Directors (the “Board™)
of the Corporation the approval of the TIF Incentive; and

WHEREAS: The Board of the Corporation received a presentation inclusive of a ferm sheet detailing
the Project and proposed TIF Incentive together with a recommendation from the staff of
the Corporation for approval in accordance with the TIF Act and the Rules.

NOW, THEREFORE, acting by and through its Board, the Corporation hereby resolves as follows:

RESOLVED:

1. To accomplish the purposes of the Act and the TIF Act, the Corporation approves the
issuance of a TIF Incentive to the Recipient as presented to the Board in the principal
amount of up to Six Million Seven Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($6,750,000)
payable over up to eighteen years at not more than a rate of interest of ten percent (10%)
on the principal amount of the award.



The authorization provided herein is further subject to the following conditions:

a. The execution of a TIF Agreement between the Corporation and the Recipient
meeting the requirements of the TIF Act and the Rules in such form as one of the
Authorized Officers (hereinafter defined) shall deem appropriate in the sole
discretion of such Officer;

b. Verification by the Corporation of compliance with the Eligibility Requirements of
of the Rules prior to any award of a TIF Incentive to the Recipient; and

¢. Such additional conditions as any of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, shall
deem appropriate in the sole discretion of such Officer.

The Board of the Corporation hereby finds and determines that: (i) the approval will
prevent, eliminate, or reduce unemployment or underemployment in the State and will
generally benefit economic development of the State; (ii) that, to the extent applicable,
the provisions of RIGL § 42-64-10(a)(1)(i1) through (v) have been satjsfied; (iii) there
is a Project Financing Gap for the Project such that after taking into account all
available private and public funding sources, the Project is not likely to be
accomplished by private enterprise without the incentives described in the TIF Act and
the Rules; (iv) the total amount of TIF Incentives awarded for the Project is the lesser
of thirty (30%) of the total Project Cost or the amount needed to close the Project
Financing Gap; (v) that the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation has provided
written confirmation required by the TIF Act (a copy of which is annexed hereto as -
Exhibit 1); (vi) the Secretary of Commerce has provided written confirmation required
by the TIF Act (a copy of which is annexed hereto as Exhibit 1); (vii) the Recipient has
demonstrated that it will otherwise satisfy the Eligibility Requirements of the Rules.

The Department of Revenue has issued a Revenue Increment Base certificate, a copy
of which is annexed hereto as Exhibit 2.

Prior to the execution of TIF Agreement with the Recipient, the Corporation shall
prepare and publicly release an analysis of the impact that the issuance of the incentives
will or may have on the State considering the factors set forth in RIGL § 42-64-10(a)(2)
(a copy of which is annexed hereto as Exhibit 3).

The Authorized Officers of the Corporation for purposes of this Resolution are the
Chair, the Vice Chair, the Secretary of Commerce, the President & COO, the Chief
Financial Officer or the Managing Director, Head of Investments (the “Authorized
Officers™). Any one of the Authorized Officers of the Corporation, acting singly, is
hereby authorized to execute, acknowledge and deliver and/or cause to be executed,
acknowledged or delivered any documents necessary or appropriate to conswnmate the
transactions authorized herein with such changes, insertions, additions, alterations and
omissions as may be approved by any such Authorized Officers, and execution thereof
by any of the Authorized Officers shall be conclusive as to the authority of such
Authorized Officers to act on behalf of the Corporation. The Secretary or the Assistant




Secretary of the Corporation, and each, acting singly, is hereby authorized to affix a
seal of the Corporation on any of the documents authorized herein and to attest to the
same.

All covenants, stipulations, and obligations and agreements of the Corporation
contained in this Resolution and the documents authorized herein shall be deemed to
be covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Corporation to the full
extent authorized and permitted by law and such covenants, stipulations, obligations
and agreements shall be binding upon any board or party to which any powers and
duties affecting such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements shall be
transferred by and in accordance with the law. Except as otherwise provided in this
Resolution, all rights, powers and privileges conferred and duties and liabilities
imposed upon the Corporation or the members thereof, by the provisions of this
Resolution and the documents authorized herein shall be exercised and performed by
the Corporation, or by such members, officers, board or body as may be required by
law to exercise such powers and perform such duties.

From and after the execution and delivery of the documents hereinabove authorized,
any one of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, are hereby authorized, empowered
and directed to do any and all such acts and things and to execute and deliver any and
all such documents, including, but not limited to, any and all amendments to the
documents, certificates, instruments and agreements hereinabove authorized, as may
be necessary or convenient in connection with the transaction authorized herein.

All acts of the Authorized Officers which are in conformity with the purposes and
intents of this Resolution and the execution, delivery and approval and performance
of such documents authorized hereby and all prior actions faken in connection
herewith are, ratified, approved and confirmed. :




EXHIBIT I




From: Stefan Pryor, Secretary of Commerce and Chief Executive Officer of the Rhode Island
Commerce Corporation
Jesse Saglio, President of the Rhode Island Commerce Corporation

Ta: Board of Directors, Rhode Island Commerce Corporation
Re: Tax Increment Financing Credit Application
Date: January 28, 2019

The staff of the Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation™) is recommending to the
Board of Directors that it approve the application of BAC CVP Aloft LLC (the “Application”) for an
incentive pursuant to the Tax Increment Financing (“TIF”) program. This memo serves as the written
confirmation, pursuant to Rhode Island General Laws § 46-64.21-6 and the Rules and Regulations for the
Rhode Island Tax Increment Financing Act of 2015 (the “Rules™), of the following:

1. The Corporation’s staff has reviewed the application submitted and the impact analysis for this
project (the impact analysis is provided to the Board as an exhibit to the approving resolution
for the project).

2. The proposed boundaries of the Qualifying TIF Area (as that term is defined in the Rules) shall
be limited to that portion of the real property located in Providence upon which the prosed hotel
will be constructed as shall be more particularly set forth in an incentive agreement.

3. The length of the TIF agreement shall be 18 years or fewer.

4. The Corporation has determined, in its discretion, that the eligible revenues for purposes of this
Application would not exceed the sales and hotel taxes assessed and collected under Chapters
18 and 19 of Title 44 of the General Laws. The percentage of the incremental revenues from
those source to be allocated under the TIF agreement shall not exceed 75% of the sales tax
assessed and collected in the Qualifying TIF Area and shall not exceed and seventy-five (75%)
percent of the Corporation’s share of the five percent (5%) hotel tax imposed under RIGL §
44-18-36.1(a) assessed and collecied in the Qualifying TIF Area.

5. The project is consistent with the purpose of the Tax Increment Financing Act, R.L. Gen. Laws
§ 42-64.21-1 ef seq.




EXHIBIT 2




Rhode Island Department of Revenue

Division of Taxation

From: Michael Canole, Chief of Examinations ‘/u/
Rhode Island Division of Taxation
To: Board of Directors, Rhode Island Commerce Corporation
Re: Revenue Increment Base Certification for BAC CVP Aloft LLC TIF Application
Date: January 28, 2019

The staff of the Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation™) has informed
the Division of Taxation (the “Division™) that it intends to recommend to the Corporation’s
Board of Directors the application of BAC CVP Aloft LLC (the “Application™) for incentives
under the Rhode Island Tax Increment Financing Act of 2015, R.L Gen. Laws § 42-64.21-1 et
seq. (the “Act™). The Corporation proposes to enter into a TIF agreement with the Applicant in
which the relevant tax streams will be the hotel sales and occupancy taxes as well as restaurant
food and beverages taxes assessed and collected under Chapters 18 and 19 of Title 44 of the
General Laws. The Act requires the Division to certify the “revenue increment base” for this
proposed TIF agreement. See R.I. Gen. Laws § 42-64.21-3(11). This memo constitutes the
Division’s certification under the Act.

The Act defines the “revenue increment base™ as “the amounts of all eligible revenues
from sources within the qualifying TIF area in the calendar year preceding the year in which the
TIF agreement is executed, as certified by the division of taxation.” Jd. The Corporation has
informed the Division of the following:

o The Application is for a hotel in Providence, R1.

e The proposed qualifying TIF area for the Application located on Lot 401 Assessor’s Plat
20, as depicted in the map attached in Exhibit A.

e The Corporation has determined, in its discretion, the eligible revenues for purposes of
this Application would not exceed the sales and hotel occupancy taxes as well as
restaurant food and beverages taxes assessed and collected under Chapters 18 and 19 of
Title 44 of the General Laws.

e The TIF Agreement is anticipated to be entered into in the 2019 calendar year.

The Division of Taxation has determined that no Rhode Island hotel sales and occupancy
taxes nor restaurant food and beverages taxes was collected or assessed in the proposed
qualifying TIF area for the calendar year 2018. Accordingly, on the basis of the foregoing
information provided by the Corporation, the Division hereby certifies that the revenue
increment base for the proposed TIF agreement is zero ($0.00).

One Capitol Hill, 1st Floor, Providence, R 02908 | Tel. (401) 574-8922 Fax (401) 574-8917 TTY Relay via 711




EXHIBIT A

Location of Proposed Qualifying TIF Area (site circled in orange)
Lot 401 Assessor’s Plat 20

~, L
R
3

One Capitol Hill, ist Fioor, Providence, R1 02908 | Tel. (401) 574-8922 Fax (401} 574-8917 TTY Relay via 711



EXHIBIT 3




Rhode Island Commerce Corporation

Rebuild Rhode Island Tax Credits — Economic Impact Analysis

BAC CVP Aloft LLC Application
Introduction

The Rhode Island Commerce Corporation {the “Corporation™} may provide Rebuild Rhode Island
tax credits to BAC CVP Aloft LLC (the “Sponsor”}. The credits would be provided in connection
with the Sponsor’s proposed investment in the development of the Aloft Providence Hotel, a new
169-room select-service hotel that would be located on a site adjacent to the life sciences complex
that is being developed in the 1-195 Redevelopment District.

The Sponsor estimates the total cost of the project to be $55.2 million. The Sponsor is requesting
Rebuild Rhode Island tax credits totaling $100,000 (gross), an exemption from sales and use
taxes payable on purchases of construction materials, valued at approximately $1.5 millicn, and
a tax increment financing (TIF) loan of $6.75 million.

This analysis was prepared by Appleseed, a consulting firm with more than twenty years of
experience in economic impact analysis.

Jobs Analysis
Construction

As shown in Table 1, the Sponsor's estimate of total project cost is approximately $55.2 million.

Table 1: Estimated total project cost ($ millions)

Properiy acquisition $51.0
Construction (hard costs). . "~ e e 40.2.
Soft costs S 8.0
Fixtures, furnifure and equipment " - B0
Total $55.2

After excluding certain expenditures that do not have a direct, current impact on Rhode Island’s
economy (such property acquisition and interest costs), spending on deveiopment of the
proposed project is estimated to fotal approximately $53.2 million.

Appleseed estimates that direct expenditures of $53.2 million will directly and indirectly generate:




» 347 person-years* of work in Rhode Island, with $21.8 million in earnings (in 2020 doliars);

s Approximately $62.9 million in statewide economic output®; and

+ A one-time increase of $33.5 million in Rhode Island’s GDP.
These impacts are summarized below in Table 2. The project’s direct impact is the impact of the
Sponsor’s direct spending on construction, including both hard and soft costs. lis indirect impact
is the effect of spending by contractors for goods and services (insurance, construction materials,
etc.) purchased from other Rhode Island businesses.

Table 2: Direct, indirect and induced impact of construction and related spending
(employment in person-years; income, value-added and output in millions of 2020 doliars)

Indirect Effect 85 5.0 - 8.0 $13.3

Total Effect 347 $21.8 $33.5 $62.9

in addition to the impacts on employment, earnings, output and state GDP cited in Table 2, direct
spending of $53.2 million would generate a projected one-time increase of approximately $1.279
in taxes paid to the State during construction, including:

+ 3819,000 in siate personal income taxes paid by Rhode island workers employed on the
project, or whose jobs are indirectly attributable to the project;

s $357,000 in state sales taxes paid on those workers' taxable household spending: and

« $103,000 in state business taxes. '

The activity reflected in Table 2 will occur primarily in 2019 and 2020,

The anticipated wage rates for construction jobs are shown below in Table 3, Anticipated wage
rates are the median hourly wage for these cccupations in Rhode Island, as of 2017.

Table 3: Anticipated wages during construction

Construction manager . $47.10
Carpenjer 7 _ B $22.82

* A person-year is equivalent to the time worked by one person who is employed full-time for a year. It could
for example represent the work of two people who are each employed full-time for six months; or the work
of one person who is employed half-time for two years.

5 Qutput is a measure of the total sales by Rhode Island companies (including the “sale” of labor by Rhode
Island households} generated by the project.

® Rhode Island Department of Labor and Training, Occupational Employment Statistics, 2017




Fring

Electrician - o $27.42

Plumber _ _ - 827
Laborer $19.39

e benefits associated with these jobs are expected to be in accordance with industry norms,

with the cost of such benefits generally ranging between 22 and 28 percent of wages. Workers
who fill these jobs are expected to be drawn primarily from the Providence-Warwick RI-MA New
England City and Town Area (NECTA).

Annual operations

The Aloft Providence Hotel and its restaurant fenant are assumed to begin operating in late 2020.
Based on infarmation provided by the Sponsor, Appleseed estimates that upon stabilization in

2022

, the hotel itself will directly employ 63 workers; and the restaurant will directly employ 37.

Based on these projections, we estimate (as shown in Table 4) that in 2022, ongoing operations
would directly and indirectly support:

118 jobs in Rhode Island, with approximately $4.9 million in annual earnings {in 2022
dollars);

$15.1 million in annual statewide economic output; and

An increase of nearly $9.3 million in Rhode Island’s annual GDP.

Table 4: Direct, indirect and total impact of huilding and commercial tenant operations, 2021
{employment in FTE; earnings, value-added and output in millions of 2021 dollars)

Direct Effect 100 $3.8 $7.5 $12.0
Indirect Effect 18 1.1 1.8 3.1
Total Effect 118 $4.9 $9.3 $15.1

in addition to the impacts on employment, earnings, output and state GDP cited in Table 4,
ongoing operations would generate a projected gross increase of approximately $1.649 million in
taxes paid to the state in 2022, including:

$1.129 million in state hotel taxes

$231,000 on restaurant and bar sales taxes

$185,000 in state personal income taxes paid by Rhode Island workers employed by the
hotel and restaurant, or whose jobs are indirectly attributable to the operations of those
businesses

$81,000 in state sales taxes paid on those workers’ taxabie household spending
$23,000 in state business taxes




Workers employed by the hotel and restaurant would be drawn primatily from Providence and
surrounding communities.

Impact

The staie fiscal impact of the requested tax credit and sales tax exemption is approximately $1.6
million in foregone state tax revenue. Direct and indirect economic and fiscal benefits of the
proposed project include an estimated increase in annual state GDP (in 2022) of approximately
$9.3 million; the associated job creation; and a gross increase of approximately $20.969 million
in hotel, personal income, sales and business tax revenues directly and indirectly generated by
the project during the construction phase, and by ongoing operations during the twelve years from
2021 through 2032.

fn addition to the economic and tax revenue impacts cited above, the proposed project would
benefit Rhode Island in several other ways:

= By increasing the supply of hotels available to support continued growth in the [nnovation
District and Downcity Providence e e

+ By creating jobs that will be accessible to workers with a hlgh school education

s By increasing local real property and personal property faxes

Beyond the fiscal impact noted above, there is no anticipated financial exposure to the state.

Various feafures of the Rebuild Rhode Island -program- mitigate other_risks fo the state- in..-.. .
particular, the compiletion risk {i.e.; the risk that the project is not completed) is mitigated by-the-- — -

fact that the requested tax credits will be issued only upon completion of the development. The
risk of project cost overruns is mitigated by the fact that state’s participation would be capped at
the amounts set forth above.



EXHIBIT D

Meeting Minutes January 28, 2019




RHODE ISLAND COMMERCE CORPORATION
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF INNOVATION VOUCHERS
UNDER THE INNOVATION INITIATIVE ACT

January 28, 2019

WHEREAS: The Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation™) was created and
exists as a public corporation, governmental agency and public instrumentality of
the State of Rhode Island and Providence Plantations (the “State™) under Chapter ;
64 of Title 42 of the General Laws of Rhode Tsland, as amended (the “Act”™); and |

WHEREAS: Chapter 64.28 of Title 42 of the General Laws of Rhode Island (the “Innovation
Act™), as amended, authorizes the Corporation to award Innovation Vouchers for
Small Businesses to receive technical or other assistance as set forth in Rule 6 of
the Rules (defined below); and

WHEREAS: The Corporation promulgated rules and regulations (the “Rules™) governing the
program established by the Innovation Act. Capitalized terms used herein but not
defined shall have the meaning as set forth in the Rules; and

WHEREAS: The Corporation received applications from each company identified on Exhibit 1
annexed hereto (the “Recipients”) for awards of an Innovation Voucher (the
“Voucher™); and

WHEREAS: The Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) received a presentation
detailing the Voucher proposed to be granted to the applicant together with a
recommendation from the staff of the Corporation to approve the award of Voucher
to the Recipients in accordance with the Innovation Act and the Rules.

NOW, THEREFORE, acting by and through its Board, the Corporation hereby resolves as
follows:

RESOLVED:

1. To accomplish the purposes of the Act and the Innovation Act, the Corporation approves
the award of a Voucher to each Recipient in the amounts set forth in Exhibit 1.

2. The authorization provided herein is subject to the following conditions:

a. The execution of a Voucher Agreement between the Corporation and the Recipients
meeting the requirements of the lnnovation Act and the Rules in such form as one of



the Authorized Officers (hereinafter defined) shall deem appropriate in the sole
discretion of such Officer;

b. Verification by the Corporation of compliance with the Eligibility Requirements of
Rule 7 of the Rules prior to issuance of a Voucher; and

c. Such additional conditions as any of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, shall deem
appropriate in the sole discretion of such Officer.

3. The Authorized Officers of the Corporation for purposes of this Resolution are the Chair,
the Vice Chair, the Secretary of Commerce, the President & COQ, the Chief Financial |
Officer or the Innovation Director (the “Authorized Officers”). Any one of the Authorized
Officers of the Corporation, acting singly, is hereby authorized to execute, acknowledge
and deliver and/or cause to be executed, acknowledged or delivered any documents -
necessary or appropriate to consummate the transactions authorized herein with such
changes, insertions, additions, alterations and omissions as may be approved by any such
Authorized Officers, and execution thereof by any of the Authorized Officers shall be
conclusive as to the authority of such Authorized Officers to act on behalf of the
Corporation. The Authorized Officers of the Corporation shall have no obligation to take
any action with respect to the authorization granted hereunder and the Corporation shall in
no way be obligated in any manner to the Recipients by virtue of having adopted this
Resolution. The Secretary or the Assistant Secretary of the Corporation, and each, acting
singly, is hereby authorized to affix a seal of the Corporation on any of the documents ... - ..
authorized herein and to attest to the same.

4. All covenants, stipulations, and obligations and agreements of the Corporation contained
in this Resolution and the decuments authorized herein shall be deemed to be covenants,
stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Corporation to the full extent authorized
and permitted by law and such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements shall be
binding upon any board or party to which any powers and duties affecting such covenants,
stipulations, obligations and agreements shall be transferred by and in accordance with the |
law. Except as otherwise provided in this Resolution, all rights, powers and privileges |
conferred and duties and liabilities imposed upon the Corporation or the members thereof, |

by the provisions of this Resolution and the documents authorized herein shall be exercised
and performed by the Corporation, or by such members, officers, board or body as may be
required by law to exercise such powers and perform such duties.

5. From and after the execution and delivery of the documents hereinabove authorized, any
one of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, are hereby authorized, empowered and
directed to do any and all such acts and things and to execute and deliver any and all such
documents, including, but not limited to, any and all amendments to the documents,
certificates, instruments and agreements hereinabove authorized, as may be necessary or
convenient in connection with the transaction authorized herein.

6. All acts of the Authorized Officers which are in conformity with the purposes and intents
of this Resolution and the execution, delivery and approval and performance of such



documents authorized hereby and all prior actions taken in connection. herewith are,
ratified, approved and confirmed.

7. This resotution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board.

|
|
|
|
|
3
i
|




EXHIBIT 1
Applicant

Dryvit Systems, Inc.

MIKEL, Inc.

Mearthane Products Corporation
Onvector, LLC

Revolution Cycle Works

Amount

$50,000
$50,000
$49,716
$42.866
$50,000



TAB 2



YOTE OFE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE RHODE ISLAND COMMERCE CORPORATION

FEBRUARY 25, 2019

APPROVED

VOTED: To approve Westminster Partners LLC for an award under the Tax Increment
Financing program pursuant to the Resolution presented to the Board.




RHODE ISLAND COMMERCE CORPORATION
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF TAX CREDITS
UNDER THE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ACT
FEBRUARY 25,2019

WHEREAS: The Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation”) was created and
exists as a public corporation, governmental agency and public instrumentality of
the State of Rhode Island and Providence Plantations (the “State™) under Chapter
64 of Title 42 of the General Laws of Rhode Island, as amended (the “Act™); and

WHEREAS: Chapter 64.21 of Title 42 of the General Laws of Rhode Island (the “TTF Act™), as
amended, authorizes the Corporation to approve the issnance of incentives in
relation to certain development projects in the State; and

WHEREAS: The Corporation promulgated rules and regulations (the “Rules”) governing the
program established by the TIF Act. Capitalized terms used herein but not
defined shall have the meaning as set forth in the Rules; and

WHEREAS: The Corporation received an application for a “TIF Incentive” from Westminster
Partners, LL.C (the “Recipient”) under the TIF Act in relation to a mixed-use
project (the “Project”) located at 187 /203 /213 Westminster Sireet, Providence, RT;

WHERFEAS: The Corporation’s Investment Committee has reviewed and considered the
proposed issuance of the TIF Incentive to the Recipient and has voted to
recommend to the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Corporation the
approval of the TIF Incentive; and

WHEREAS: The Board of the Corporation received a presentation inclusive of a term sheet
detailing the Project and proposed TIF Incentive together with a recommendation
from the staff of the Corporation for approval in accordance with the TIF Act and
the Rules.

NOW, THEREFORE, acting by and through its Board, the Corporation hereby resolves as
follows:

RESOLVED:

1. To accomplish the purposes of the Act and the TIF Act, the Corporation approves the
issuance of a TIF Incentive to the Recipient in an amount not to exceed the principal
sum of $6,000,000 at a rate of interest not more than ten percent for a maximum term
of twenty years.

2. The authorization provided herein is further subject to the following conditions:

a. The execution of a TIF Agreement between the Corporation and the Recipient
meeting the requirements of the TIF Act and the Rules in such form as one of the




Authorized Officers (hereinafter defined) shall deem appropriate in the sole
discretion of such Officer;

b. Verification by the Corporation of compliance with the Ehgibility Requirements of
the Rules prior to any award of a TIF Incentive to the Recipient; and

¢. Such additional conditions as any of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, shall
deem appropriate in the sole discretion of such Officer.

The Board of the Corporation hereby finds and determines that: (i) the approval will
prevent, eliminate, or reduce unemployment or underemployment in the State and will
generally benefit economic development of the State; (i1) that, to the extent applicable,
the provisions of RIGL § 42-64-10(a)(1)(ii) through (v) have been satisfied; (iii} there
is a Project Financing Gap for the Project such that after taking into account all
available private and public funding sources, the Project is not likely to be
accomplished by private enterprise without the incentives described in the TIF Act and
the Rules; (iv) the total amount of TIF Incentives awarded for the Project is the lesser
of thirty (30%) of the total Project Cost or the amount needed to close the Project
Financing Gap; (v) that the Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation has provided
written confirmation required by the TIF Act (a copy of which is annexed hereto as
Exhibit 1); (vi) the Secretary of Commerce has provided written confirmation required
by the TIF Act (a copy of which is annexed hereto as Exhibit 1); (vii) the Recipient has
demonstrated that it will otherwise satisty the Eligibility Requirements of the Rules.

The Department of Revenue has issued a Revenue Increment Base certificate, a copy -
of which is annexed hereto as Exhibit 2.

Prior to the execution of TIF Agreement with the Recipient, the Corporation shall
prepare and publicly release an analysis of the impact that the issuance of the incentives
will or may have on the State considering the factors set forth in RIGL § 42-64-10(a)(2)
(a copy of which is annexed hereto as Exhibit 3).

The Authorized Officers of the Corporation for purposes of this Resolution are the
Chair, the Vice Chair, the Secretary of Commerce, the President & COQ, the Chief
Financial Officer or the Executive Vice President Investments (the “Authorized
Officers™). Any one of the Authorized Officers of the Corporation, acting singly, is
hereby authorized to execute, acknowledge and deliver and/or cause to be executed,
acknowledged or delivered any documents necessary or appropriate to consummate the
transactions authorized herein with such changes, insertions, additions, alterations and
omissions as may be approved by any such Authorized Officers, and execution thereof
by any of the Authorized Officers shall be conclusive as to the authority of such
Authorized Officers to act on behalf of the Corporation. The Secretary or the Assistant

Secretary of the Corporation, and each, acting singly, is hereby authorized to affix a .

seal of the Corporation on any of the documents authorized herein and to attest to the
same.



All covenants, stipulations, and obligations and agreements of the Corporation
contained in this Resolution and the documents authorized herein shall be deemed to
be covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Corporation to the full
extent authorized and permitted by law and such covenants, stipulations, obligations
and agreements shall be binding upon any board or party to which any powers and
duties affecting such covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements shall be
transferred by and in accordance with the law. Except as otherwise provided in this
Resolution, all rights, powers and privileges conferred and duties and liabilities
imposed upon the Corporation or the members thereof, by the provisions of this
Resolution and the documents authorized herein shall be exercised and performed by
the Corporation, or by such members, officers, board or body as may be required by
law to exercise such powers and perform such duties.

From and after the execution and delivery of the documents hereinabove authorized,
any one of the Authorized Officers, acting singly, are hereby authorized, empowered
and directed to do any and all such acts and things and to execute and deliver any and
all such documents, including, but not limited to, any and all amendments to the

documents, certificates, instruments and agreements hereinabove authorized, as may -

be necessary or convenient in connection with the transaction authorized herein.

All acts of the Authorized Officers which are in conformity with the purposes and
intents of this Resolution and the execution, delivery and approval and performance
of such documents authorized hereby and all prior actions faken in connection
herewith are, ratified, approved and confirmed.




EXHIBIT 1




From:

To:

Re:

Date:

Stefan Pryor, Secretary of Commerce and Chief Executive Officer of the Rhode
Island Commerce Corporation

Darin Early, President and Chief Operating Officer of the Rhode Island
Commerce Corporation

Board of Directors, Rhode Island Commerce Corporation

Tax Increment Financing Credit Application

Februvary 25, 2019

The staff of the Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation™) is
recommending to the Board of Directors that it approve the application of Westminster Partners,
LLC (the “Application”) for an incentive pursuant to the Tax Increment Financing (*TIF”)
program. This memo serves as the written confirmation, pursuant to Rhode Island General Laws
§ 46-64.21-6 and the Rules and Regulations for the Rhode Island Tax Increment Financing Act
of 2015 (the “Rules™), of the following:

1.

The Corporation’s staff has reviewed the application submitted and the impact
analysis for this project (the impact analysis is provided to the Board as an exhibit to
the approving resolution for the project).

The proposed boundaries of the Qualifying TIF Area (as that term is defined in the
Rules) shall be limited to that portion of the real property known as 187 /203 / 213
Westminster Street, Providence, RI upon which the proposed mixed-used project will be
constructed.

The length of the TIF agreement shall be 20 years or fewer.

The Corporation has determined, in its discretion, that the eligible revenues for
purposes of this Application would not exceed the sales and hotel taxes assessed and
collected under Chapters 18 and 19 of Title 44 of the General Laws. The percentage
of the incremental revenues from those source to be allocated under the TIF
agreement shall not exceed 75% of the sales tax assessed and collected in the
Qualifying TIF Area and shall not exceed 18% of the hotel tax assessed and collected
in the Qualifying TIF Area.

The project is consistent with the purpose of the Tax Increment Financing Act, R.L
Gen. Laws § 42-64.21-1 ef seq.




EXHIBIT 2




Rhode Island Department of Revenue

Division of Taxation

From: Michael Canole, Chief of Examinations ﬂ&
Rhode Island Division of Taxation

Tao: Board of Directors, Rhode Island Commerce Corporation

Re: Revenue Increment Base Certification for Westminster Partners, LLC TIF
Application

Date: February 25, 2019

The staff of the Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation”) has informed
the Division of Taxation (the “Division”) that it intends to recommend to the Corporation’s
Board of Directors the application of Westminster Partners, LLC (the “Application”) for
incentives under the Rhode Island Tax Increment Financing Act 0f 2015, R.1. Gen, Laws § 42-
64.21-1 et seq. (the “Act”). The Corporation proposes to enter into a TIF agreement with the
Applicant in which the relevant tax streams will be the hotel sales and occupancy taxes as well as
restaurant food and beverages taxes assessed and collected under Chapters 18 and 19 of Title 44
of the General Laws. The Act requires the Division to certify the “revenue increment base™ for
this proposed TIF agreement. See R.1. Gen. Laws § 42-64.21-3(] 1). This memo constitutes the
Division’s certification under the Act.

The Act defines the “revenue increment base” as “the amounts of all eligible revenues
from sources within the qualifying TIF area in the calendar year preceding the year in which the
TIF agreement is executed, as certified by the division of taxation.” Id. The Corporation has
informed the Division of the following:

o The Application is for an adaptive reuse of the properties located at 187,203 and 213
Westminster Street, Providence, RL

e The proposed qualifying TIF area for the Application located on Assessor’s Plat 020/Lot
0021, 0022, 0025, as depicted in the map attached in Exhibit A.

e The Corporation has determined, in its discretion, the eligible revenues for purposes of
this Application would not exceed the sales and hotel occupancy taxes as well as
restaurant food and beverages taxes assessed and collected under Chapters 18 and 19 of
Title 44 of the General Laws.

o The TIF Agreement is anticipated to be entered into in the 2019 calendar year.

"The Division of Taxation has determined that no Rhode Island hotel sales and occupancy
taxes nor restaurant food and beverages taxes was collected or assessed in the proposed
qualifying TIF area for the calendar year 2018, Accordingly, on the basis of the foregoing
information provided by the Corporation, the Division hereby certifies that the revenue
increment base for the proposed TIF agreement is zero ($6.00).

One Capitol Hill, 1st Floor, Providence, RT 02908 | Tel. (401) 574-8922 Fax (401} 574-8917 TTY Relay via 711




EXHIBIT A

Location of Proposed Qualifying TIF Arca (site outlined in red)

SYIN LIS

, 0025

0022

s Plat 020/Lot 0021,

bl

Assessor

One Capitol Hill, 1st Floor, Providence, RT 02908 | Tel. (401) 574-8922 Fax (401) 574-8917 TTY Relay via 711



EXHIBIT 3




Rhode Island Commerce Corporation

Rebuild Rhode Island Tax Credits — Economic Impact Analysis
Westminster Partners LLC Application

Introduction
The Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation™) may provide Rebuild Rhode Island tax
credits and tax increment financing (“TIF™) incentives to Westininster Partners LLC (the “Sponsor™). The
credits would he provided in conmection with the Sponsor’s proposed investment in the adaptive reuse of
two long-vacant buildings on Westminster Street in Downcity Providence, The 124,000 square-foot project
would include:
* A 91-room Hote] Hive
o The Hive Life Lofts — 48 studio apartments that could be used either for long-term rentals, as
corporate apartments, or for short-term rentals
s Hive HQ, a 7,130 square-foot co-working and shared office space
e The Hive Bar —a 3,295 square-foot bar and social space and cutdoor cafe
o &Pizza, a 2,400 square-foot fast-casual pizza restaurant
* A 13,440 square-foot roofiop bar and restaurant (including approximately 6,300 square feet of
ouidoor space)
s  Approximately 54 parking spaces

The Sponsor estimates the total cost of the project to be $39.0 million. The Sponsor is reguesting Rebuild
Rhode Island tax increment financing incentives totaling $6.0 million.

This analysis was prepared by Appleseed, a consulting firm with more than twenty years of experience in
econormic impact analysis.

Jobs Analysis
Construction
As shown in Table 1, the Sponsor’s estimate of total project cost is approximately $39.0 million

Property acquisition 547
- Construction (hard costs) .~ = - S 264
Soft costs 6.1
* Fixtures, furniture and equipment - o N
Total $39.0

After excluding certain expenditures that do not have a direct, current impact on Rhode Island’s economy
(such property acquisition and interest paid during construction), spending on development of the proposed
project is estimated to total approximateiy $33.5 million.
Appleseed estimates that direct expenditures of $33.5 million will directly and indirectly generate:

e 232 person-years' of work in Rhode Island, with $14.1 million in earnings (in 2020 dollars);

T A person-year is equivalent to the time worked by one person who is employed full-time for a year. It could
for example represent the work of two people who are each employed full-time for six months; or the work
of one person who is employed half-time for two years.




s Approximately $40.8 million in statewide economic output’; and
e A one-time increase of $21.1 million in Rhode sland’s GDP.

These impacts are summarized below in Table 2. The project’s direct impact is the impact of the Sponsor’s
direct spending on construction, including both hard and soft costs. Its indirect impact is the effect of
spending by contractors for goods and services {insurance, construction materials, etc.) purchased from
other Rhode Istand businesses.

Table 2: Direct, indirect and induced impact of construction and related spending (employment in
ears; income, value-added and output in millions of 2019 dollars

Direct Effect 163 $10.4 $15.2 . $31.2
Indirect Effect 70 39 6.0 $9.9
Total Effect 233 $14.1 $21.2 $41.1

In addition to the impacts on employment, earnings, output and state GDP cited in Table 2, direct spending
of $33.5 million would generate a projected one-time increase of approximately $1.378 million in taxes
paid to the State during construction, inciuding:

s $548,000 in state sales and use taxes on materials used in construction

e $531,000 in state personal income taxes paid by Rhode Island workers employed on the project, or
whose jobs are indirectly attributable to the project;

e $232,000 in state sales taxes paid on those workers® taxable household spending; and

o $67,000 in state business taxes.

The activity reflected in Table 2 will occur primarily in 2019 and 2020.
The anticipated wage rates for construction jobs are shown below in Table 3. Anticipated wage rates are
the median hourly wage for these occupations in Rhode Island, as of 2017,

le 3: Antici d d
Architect _ $40.36
Construction manager' .~ . = . . .. $47.10
Carpenter _ $22.82
CElectrician: . Lo $27.42
Plumber _ B AN
sPainter .o s $18.85
Laborer $19.39

Fringe benefits associated with these jobs are expected to be in accordance with industry norms, with the
cost of such benefits generally ranging between 22 and 28 percent of wages. Workers who fill these jabs
are expected to be drawn primarily from the Providence-Warwick RI-MA New England City and Town
Area (NECTA).

Annual operations
The residential unifs, hotel, and other new businesses included in the proposed project are expected to begin
operating in the spring of 2021, with stabilized operations being reached in 2022. Using IMPLAN, and

2 Quiput is a measure of the total sales by Rhode Island companies (including the "sale” of labor by Rhode
Island households) generated by the project.
* Rhode Island Department of Labor and Training, Occupational Employment Statistics, 2017



based on information provided by the Sponsor, Appleseed estimates (as shown in Table 4) that in 2022,
ongoing operations would directly and indirectly support:
o 154 full-time-equivalent jobs in Rhode Island, with approximately $5.2 million in annual earnings
{in 2022 dollars);
e  $13.7 million in annual statewide economic output; and

»  Anincrease of $8.4 million in Rhode Island’s annual GDP.

Table 4: Direct, indirect and total incremental impact of hotel and commercial tenant operations, 2022
employment in FTE; earnings, valee-added and output in millions of 2022 dollars

Direct Effect 139 $4.3 $6.7 $10.9
Indirect Effect 15 $1.0 1.7 2.8
Total Effect 154 $5.3 $8.4 $13.7

In addition to the impacts on employment, earnings, output and state GDP cited in Table 4, ongoing
operations would generale a projected gross increase of approximately $1.252 million in taxes paid to the
state in 2022, including:

o $545,000 in state sales and hotel taxes levied on room rentals at the proposed new hotel;

e  $395,000 in state sales taxes on food and beverages sold at the project’s bars and restaurants

e $200,000 in state personal income taxes paid by Rhode Island workers employed by the hotel or
by other commiercial tenants, or whose jobs are indirectly attributable to the operations of those
businesses;

e $87,000 in state sales taxes paid on those workers’ taxable household spending;

s $25,000 in state business taxes.

Workers employed by the hotel and By commercial tenants would be drawn primarily from communities
throughout the Providence-Warwick RI-MA NECTA.

Impact :
The state fiscal impact of the requested TIF incentive is approximately $6.0 million in foregone state tax
revenue. Direct and indirect economic and fiscal benefits of the proposed project include an estimated
increase in annual state GDP (in 2022) of approximately $8.4 million; the associated job creation; and a
gross increase of approximately $15.522 million in hotel, personal income, sales and business tax revenues
directly and indirectly generated by the project during the construction phase, and by ongoing operations
during the twelve years from late 2021 through late 2032,
In addition to the economic and tax revenue impacts cited above, the proposed project would benefit Rhode
Island in several other ways:

s By redeveloping and activating a long-vacant property in Downcity Providence

» By increasing hotel capacity in the city
» By providing new dining and entertainment options in the Downcity area
o By increasing hotel, real property and personal property taxes paid to the city

Beyond the fiscal impact noted above, there is no anticipated financial exposuore to the state. Various
features of the Rebuild Rhode Island program mitigate other risks to the state. In particular, the completion
risk (i.e., the risk that the project is not completed) is mitigated by the fact that the requested TIF incentives
will be issued only upon completion of the development. The risk of project cost overruns is mitigated by
the fact that state’s participation would be capped at the amount set forth above.




TAB 3



YOTE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE RHODE ISLAND COMMERCE CORPORATION

FEBRUARY 25, 2019

APPROVED

VOTED: To approve the issuance of bonds in relation to the Historic Structures Tax Credit
Financing program pursuant to the Resolution presented to the Board.




RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT MORE THAN
$77,000,000 OF RHODE ISLAND COMMERCE CORPORATION REVENUE BONDS
(HISTORIC STRUCTURES TAX CREDIT FINANCING PROGRAM - SERIES 2019 A) AND
AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A
SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURE, A BOND PURCHASE AGREEMENT, A
PRELIMINARY AND FINAL OFFICIAL STATEMENT, A PAYMENT AGREEMENT WITH
THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND OR ANY OF ITS AGENCIES, DEPARTMENTS AND
GENERAL OFFICERS, AND ALL OTHER DOCUMENTS AND MATTERS IN
CONNECTION THEREWITH

February 25,2019

WHEREAS: The Rhode Island Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation™) was created
and exists as a public corporation, governmental agency and public
instrumentality of the State of Rhode Island and Providence Plantations (the
“State”) under Chapter 64 of Title 42 of the General Laws of Rhode Island, as
amended (the “Act™); and

WHEREAS: Pursuant to Section 4 of Article 4, Substitute A, as amended, of Chapter 100
of the Rhode Island Public Laws of 2008 (the “General Assembly
Resolution™) (i) the Rhode Island General Assembly (the “General
Assembly”) found and declared that tax credits earned pursuant to Rhode
Island General Laws §§ 44-33.2-1 et seq. (the “Historic Tax Credits”) have
had and continue to have the desired effect of stimulating, promoting and
encouraging redevelopment and reuse of historic structures by modern
commercial, residential and manufacturing enterprises in order to foster civic
beauty, promote public education, pleasure and welfare and otherwise
generally improve and enhance the long-term economic well-being of the
citizens of the State, and (i1) the GGeneral Assembly found and determined that
given the nature of the development process, it is difficult to project the
amount of Historic Tax Credits that will be presented in any given fiscal year
of the State, and that it is in the best interest of the State to stabilize budget
projections and streamline annual impacts of the presentment of Historic Tax
Credits; and

WHEREAS: In order to effectuate the balanced absorption of Historic Tax Credits, the
General Assembly has authorized the Corporation to issue bonds from time to
time in an amount not more than $356,200,000 to be secured by annual budget
appropriations by the General Assembly, and has further authorized the
Governor of the State to enter into a payment agreement (the “Payment
Agreement”) and such other agreements with the Corporation which will
provide for the transfer of monies to the State by the Corporation upon
presentment of Historic Tax Credits to the State by taxpayers; and




WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS:

WHEREAS

In order to finance the balanced absorption of Historic Tax Credits in the
State’s 2019 fiscal year, and future fiscal years, the State has requested that
the Corporation issue the Bonds (defined below) before the end of the State’s
2019 fiscal year (the “Project™); and

The General Assembly Resolution specifies that neither the Bonds nor the
Payment Agreement shall constitute indebtedness of the State or any of its
subdivisions or a debt for which the full faith and credit of the State or any of
its subdivisions is pledged except to the extent the State appropriates funds for
the Bonds or the Payment Agreement subject to annual budget appropriations;
and

The Corporation is authorized pursuant to the General Assembly Resolution
and the Act to borrow money and issue bonds for the purposes specified in the
General Assembly Resolution and to enter into such agreements and take such
actions as the Corporation shall deem necessary or desirable to effectuate the
financing specified in the General Assembly Resolution; and

The Corporation desires to assist the State in the financings described above;
and

The proposed issuance was presented to the Access to Capital Subcommittee
of the Corporation on February 20, 2019, which Subcommittee unanimously
recommended approval of the proposed issuance of the Bonds. .. .

NOW, THEREFORE, acting by and through its Board of Directors, the Corporation hereby
resolves as follows:

RESOLVED:

1. To accomplish the purposes of the Act and the General Assembly
Resolution, the issuance of not more than $77,000,000 Rhode Island
Commerce Corporation Revenue Bonds (Historic Structures Tax Credit
Financing Program - Series 2019 A} (the “Bonds”) is hereby authorized,
subject to the provisions of this Resolution.

2. The Corporation finds that:

(i)  the issuance of the Bonds, and to the extent applicable to the
Project, the acquisition or construction and operation of the Project
will prevent, eliminate or reduce unemployment or
underemployment in the State and will generally benefit economic
development of the State; - B

(i1) to the extent applicable to the Project, adequate provision has been
made or will be made for the payment of the cost of the
acquisition, construction, operation and maintenance and upkeep
of the Project;




(iii) to the extent applicable to the Project, with respect to real property,
the plans and specifications assure adequate light, air, sanitation
and fire protection;

(iv) to the extent applicable to the Project, the Project is in conformity
with the applicable provisions of Chapter 23 of Title 46 of the
Rhode Island General Laws; and

(v} the Project is in conformity with the applicable provisions of the
State Guide Plan.

As required by the Act, prior to the issuance of the Bonds, the
Corporation shall prepare and publicly release an analysis of the impact
that the proposed Project will or may have on the State.

The Authorized Officers of the Corporation for the purposes of this
Resolution are the Chair, the Vice Chair, the Secretary of Comimerce,
the Treasurer, the President and Chief Operating Officer, the Chief
Financial Officer and the Managing Director of Financial Services (the
“Authorized Officers™). The Authorized Officers of the Corporation are,
and cach of them acting singly hereby is, authorized to execute,
acknowledge and deliver or cause to be executed, acknowledged or
delivered any of the documents authorized herein with such changes,
insertions, additions, alterations and omissions as may be approved by
said Authorized Officer, and such Authorized Officer’s execution
thereof shall be conclusive as to the authority of such Authorized Officer
to act on behalf of the Corporation. The Secretary or Assistant Secretary
of the Corporation, and each, acting singly, is hereby authorized to affix
a seal of the Corperation on the Bonds and on any of the documents
authorized herein and to attest to the same.

The Bonds shall be dated as provided in the Master Trust Indenture
between the Corporation and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust
Company, N.A., as Trustee (the “Trustee™), dated as of June I, 2009,
and the Series 2019 A Supplemental Trust Indenture dated as of May 1,
2019 (the Master Trust Indenture and the Supplemental Trust Indenture,
collectively, the “Indenture™) shall be in an aggregate principal amount
not to exceed $75,000,000 and shall be issued as fully registered
obligations. The Bonds shall mature within nine (9) years from their
date and shall bear such other terms as are set forth in the Indenture.
'The form of the Bonds and the provisions for the signature,
authentication, payment, prepayment and number shall be as set forth in
the Indenture.



The Bonds shall be special obligations of the Corporation payable solely
from the revenues, funds or monies pledged therefor under the
Indenture. Neither the State, nor any political subdivision, nor any
municipality thereof, shall be obligated to pay the principal of, premium,
if any, or interest on the Bonds, except to the extent the General
Assembly appropriates funds for the Bonds or Payment Agreement
subject to annual budget appropriations. Netther the full faith and credit
nor the taxing power of the State, the Corporation nor any municipality
thereof shall be pledged to the payment of the principal, premium, if
any, or interest on the Bonds, except to the extent the General Assembly
appropriates funds for the Bonds or Payment Agreement subject to
annual budget appropriations.

J. P. Morgan Securities LLC is hereby appointed senior managing
underwriter for the Bonds., The Bonds shall be sold to the Underwriter
pursuant to a Bond Purchase Agreement or similar instrument (“Bond
Purchase Agreement”) by and among the Corporation and the
Underwriter.

The following agreements and documents are hereby authorized, each to
contain such provisions and to be in such form as an Authorized Officer
or Officers shall determine to be necessary or appropriate, and the
execution, acknowledgement and delivery of each such agreement or
document by such Authorized Officer or Officers shall be conclusive
evidence as to authorization by this Resolution: (i) the Indenture; (if) the
Second Amended and Restated Payment Agreement; (iii) the Bond
Purchase Agreement; (iv) Preliminary and Final Official Statements; (v)
a Continuing Disclosure Agreement and (vi) such other agreements,
instruments, certificates or documents, including, but not limited to,
agreements with the State and any of its agencies and departments, as
may be deemed necessary or appropriate by such Authorized Officer or
Officers for the implementation of this Resolution.

All covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the
Corporation contained in this Resolution and the documents authorized
herein shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, obligations and
agreements of the Corporation to the full extent authorized and
permitted by law and such covenants, stipulations, obligations and
agreements shall be binding upon any board or party to which any
powers and duties affecting such covenants, stipulations, obligations and
agreements shall be transferred by and in accordance with the law.
Except as otherwise provided in this Resolution, all rights, powers and
privileges conferred, and duties and liabilities imposed on the
Corporation or the members thereof, by the provisions of this Resolution
and the documents authorized herein shall be exercised and performed




10.

11

12,

13.

14.

by the Corporation, or by such members, officers, board or body as may
be required by law to exercise such powers and perform such duties.

The Authorized Officers of the Corporation are, and each acting singly
hereby is, further directed to proceed to cause the net proceeds of the
sale of the Bonds to be disbursed to the State as provided in the
documents authorized by this Resolution.

The Corporation hereby consents to the use and distribution of a
preliminary and Final Official Statement with such changes, insertions
and omissions as may be necessary for use by the Underwriter in the sale
of the Bonds in accordance with the Bond Purchase Agreement. An
Authorized Officer may deem the Preliminary Official Statement “final
as of its date” pursuant to rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities Exchange
Commission. The Corporation will not be responsible for any
information set forth in the Preliminary and Final Official Statements
except as set forth in the Bond Purchase Agreement with respect to the
Bonds.

Any one or more of the Authorized Officers be, and each of them acting
singly hereby is, authorized: (i) to approve the definitive terms of the
Bonds, including the principal amount thereof, the maturity and the
interest rates (within the parameters set forth in Paragraph 5 above and
the General Assembly Resolution); and (ii) to take such further action or -~ —-—
to cause such further action to be taken as may be necessaryor - - -
appropriate to effectuate the issuance of the Bonds and to carry out the
transactions contemplated by this Resolution.

Al acts of the Authorized Officers which are in conformity with the
purposes and intents of this Resolution and in furtherance of the Project
and the purposes of the Act and General Assembly Resolution, and the
execution, delivery and approval and performance of the documents,
certificates, instruments and agreements hereinabove authorized are, in
all respects, ratified, approved and confirmed.

From and after the execution and delivery of the documents, certificates, -
instruments and agreements hereinabove authorized, each Authorized
Officer is hereby authorized, empowered and directed to do any and all
such acts and things and to execute and deliver any and all such
documents, certificates, instruments and agreements, including, but not
limited to, any and all amendments to the documents, certificates,
instruments and agreements hereinabove authorized, as may be

necessary or convenient in connection with the Bonds, or to carry out

and comply with the provisions of the documents, certificates,
instruments and agreements hereinabove authorized.




I5.

16.

17.

To the extent not contrary to applicable law, the Corporation shall
collect an administrative fee in an amount determined by the President
and Chief Operating Officer of the Corporation, payable at closing. In
addition, the reasonable fees and charges of the Corporation relating to
the Bonds, shall be paid as and when the same become due.

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. is hereby
appointed trustee for the Bonds.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately.




TAB 4

NO VOTE




TAB 5



VOTE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE RHODE ISLAND COMMERCE CORPORATION

FEBRUARY 25, 219

APPROVED

VOTED: To approve vendors in relation to real estate consultant services pursuant to the
Resolution presented to the Board.




RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE RHODE ISLAND COMMERCE CORPORATION

February 25, 2019
(With Respect to Real Estate Consultant Services)

WHEREAS, the Rhode Istand Commerce Corporation (the “Corporation”) issued a request
for proposals in relation to real estate consultant and advisory services (the “Services™); and

WHEREAS, the applicants were properly reviewed and qualifications considered, and a
recommendation was made to the Board of the Corporation fo retain the vendors identified below
to provide the Services.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Corporation as follows:

Section 1: Any of the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Secretary of Commerce,
President and COO, and/or Chief Financial Officer acting singly, shall have the authority to
negotiate and execute any and all documents in connection with the retention of the following
vendors for on-call real estate consultant services at the rates specified in their proposals, plus out
of pocket expenses at the discretion of such officer:

A. Camoin Associates;
B. RKG Associates; and
C. RES Group.

Section 2: The Authorized Officers may provide for an initial term of up to three years
and thereafter may extend the term of such services for an additional three years.

Section 3: This Resclution shall take effect immediately upon passage.



TAB 6




VOTE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE RHODE ISLAND COMMERCE CORPORATION

FEBRUARY 25, 2019

APPROVED

VOTED: To approve contract extensions in relation to vendors for marketing/tourism as
presented to the Board.




